
 
 

DATE: December 2, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 1 

 
TO:    Financial Commission 
 
FROM:   Kim Juran-Karageorgiou, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    

A) Receive staff and auditor presentation and discuss the draft CAFR 
B) Recommendation to proceed to present to City Council  

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City’s independent auditor, Maze and Associates, has completed the audit of the City’s financial 
statements and provided their auditor reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  This year 
represents the second year for the City’s auditor, Maze and Associates. The City has once again 
prepared its financial statements in the form of a Comprehensive Annual Finance Report for the 
Year Ended June 30, 2015, which contains three sections:  

1. Introductory Section – This section includes the transmittal letter, list of principal officers, 
and an organization chart 

2. Financial Section – This section includes the independent auditor’s report, Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of the fiscal year, the basic financial statements and notes that 
explain the City’s financial position and operating results, and supplementary statements, 
schedules, and notes that provide additional detailed information to the basic financial 
statements 

3. Statistical Section – This section includes pertinent financial and non-financial statistical data 
that presents various economic, social, and demographic trends and other information 
about the City for the past ten years  

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The City has attained an unqualified audit opinion validating the fair and accurate presentation of its 
financial status as of June 30, 2015.  The City continued to demonstrate its strong financial 
performance this past year, with revenues continuing to show strong recovery coupled with cost 
containment resulting primarily from salary savings from positions held vacant during the economic 
downturn.  The City also strengthened its reserves, maintaining its General Fund Reserve of 20% of 
operating budget, in addition to adding to other key reserves including the Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) Reserve, PERS Reserve, and Technology Reserve. 
 
  



The Government-Wide Financial Statements provide a combined presentation of all the City’s funds 
broken into two categories, Governmental Activities (General Fund and Special Revenue Funds) 
and Business-Type Activities (Enterprise Funds).  Some highlights include: 

• Decrease in the City’s net position (i.e. equity) of $17.4 million or 18% over the prior year.  
This decrease is entirely attributable to the implementation of GASB 68 and the realization 
of a $19.6 million net pension liability. 

• Total City assets of $130.7 million, with $111.6 million in governmental activities and $19.1 
million in business-type activities. 

• Total City liabilities increased by $21 million, largely attributable to the implementation of 
GASB 68 and the realization of a $19.6 million pension liability.  Further information on the 
City’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 5, 6, 10, and 11 in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

• Total government-wide revenues of $46.1 million, a 3% decrease from the prior year with 
approximately $38.9 million or 84% attributable to Governmental activities and the 
remaining $7.2 million or 16% related to Business-Type Activities. 

• Total government-wide expenses of $39.7 million, a 7% increase from the prior year.  This 
increase in expenses is largely attributable to filling positions held vacant in the 2013/14 
fiscal year during the course of the 2014/15 fiscal year. 

 
The Fund Financial Statements present the City’s Major Funds (General Fund, In-Lieu Park, and 
Capital Projects Funds) and the City’s Proprietary Funds (Sewer, Solid Waste, and Storm Drain 
Fund).  Some highlights in the Fund Financial Statements include: 

• The General Fund, which includes the Real Property Proceeds Fund and Community 
Facilities Renewal Fund, realized revenues over expenditures and transfers out of $6.3M, a 
$1.0M decrease from the prior year.  This surplus is largely attributable to higher than 
anticipated property tax and transient occupancy tax revenues coupled with contained 
spending. 

• General Fund revenues, excluding transfers, increased slightly over prior year actuals by 
$.09M or less than 1% to $36.1M.  Current year results also exceeded budget estimates by 
10%. 

• General Fund expenditures increased by $1.1M to $29.8M, or 4%, as a result of filling 
positions held vacant during the economic downturn. 

• Total governmental fund balances equaled $52.6M at fiscal year-end, a strong increase of 
$6.4M, or 14%, due to increased tax dollars and focused cost savings efforts.  

• The Gas Tax Fund balance decreased by $342,000 to $1M with the use of funds for capital 
projects outpacing revenues for the year.   

• Sewer operations ended the year favorably with an increase in net position of $1.6M.  Sewer 
revenues were at $6.3M, the same as in 2014 as a result of a billing adjustment for a prior 
year overbilling offsetting the multi-year rate increase program. 

 
While the CAFR provides favorable news for the City’s finances, it also highlights the City’s 
liabilities related to pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB).  The City will continue 
to further analyze the best manner to address these long-term liabilities over the coming months.   
 
The Transmittal Letter and Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) found in the first two 
sections of the CAFR, provide a more in-depth review and summary of the City’s financial 
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performance.  Readers of the CAFR are encouraged to read these documents for a more thorough 
analysis of the financial statements.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council 
City of Los Altos, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Los Altos, 
California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financia l statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic fmancial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards appl icable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair 
presentation of the fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City' s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the City as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in 
fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof listed as part of the basic fmancial statements 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

Management adopted the provIsions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statements, which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2015 that a prior period adjustment to 
the financial statements, as discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements: 

• Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions- an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27. 

• Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date - an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 68. 

The emphasis of these matters does not constitute a modification to OUf opinions. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, Other Required Supplementary infonnation be presented to supplement the 
basic fmancial statements . Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the 
infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic fmancial statements. The Introductory Section, Supplemental Infonnation, and 
Statistical Section listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
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The Supplemental Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Supplemental 
Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the audit ing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Otller Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DATE, on our 
consideration of the City' s internal control over financia l reporting and on Our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
PATE 
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City of Los Altos 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

The purpose of this discussion and analysis is to provide an overview of the Gty's financial 
performance and activities for th fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Readers are encouraged to 
consider this information in conjunction with the executive sluumary provided in the letter of 
b·ansmittal that can be found on pages _ to _ of this report. 

FlNANOAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Gty ended its fiscal year on a govenunent-wide basis with total revenues of $46.1M, a 2% 
decrease from the prior year, and expenses of $39.7M, an increase of 7%. The resu lts represent 
combined government and business operations, with an overaLl increase in net position of $6.45 
million du to continuing strong revenues combined with con tained expenditures G ty-wide. 
These favorable fiscal results have continued to strengthen the Gty's reserves and allow the 
Gty to continue proactive capital project plans. 

Operational revenue gains were noted in property, hotel occupancy, and sales taxes as well as 
reo·eation programming. As expected, community development fees decreased in 2015 from 
the prior year amount which included revenues from s v ral large development proj cts. No 
revenue declines of note were observed beyond the anticipated decrease from 2014 from a one­
time sa le of property. Sewer revenues increased as part of a multi-year rate increase program to 
facilitate future operationa l and capital needs. 

The increase in Govenunent-wide expenses is the result of an effort to begin filling critical staff 
positions Ulat were held vacant during Ule economic downturn. It is anticipat d that the G ty's 
expenditures will begin to move more clos Iy to the budget as positions are filled. Resow-ce 
uses continue to refl ec t an emphasis on public sa fety, infras b·ucture maint nance, quality of life 
and community development activity. 

The CiLy has made significant progress on many capital improvement initiatives, which include 
ADA accessibility improvements, the resurfacing and restriping of City streets, and pedesb·ian 
and bicycle safety improvements tl1foughout tl,e City. The City has also made Significant capital 
investments in tlle maintenance and improvement of Ule Gty-wide Sewer systems in line wiU1 
the Sewer Master Plan recenUy adopted by Council. 

The City's positive operating revenues over expenditl.lr s reflect pru.dent cost-conscious bud.geting 
and financial management stewal'dship. The mal·gin of revenues over expenditures came in above 
well above Ule anticipated budget setting a favorable position as upcoming blldgets are developed. 
Budget estimates have been met for all key operating and business funds. 
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Government-Wide View 

• Ne t position (excess of assets over liabilities) equaled $94.8M, a decrease of $17.4M, or 18%. 
This decrease is entirely attributable to the implementation of GASB 68 and the realization 
of a $19.6 net pel1sion liability. The Cily's net position represents the Ci ly's total net 
holdings and are not necessarily unrestricted depending upon the source of the origina l 
funding. 

• Unrestricted net position equals $19.2 million, a decrease of $16.5M, or 46%. Governmental 
uruesb'icted net position totaled $10.7M at yea]' end, a decrease of $16.9M, while business 
activities related unres h'icted asse ts totaled $8.5M, an increase of $.4M. The decrease in 
unres tricted governmental net position ]'esults from the implementation of GASB 68 and 
the recording of the City's $19.6M net pension liability. It is important to note that 
unl'esb'icted net ass ts, as pl'esented in the govenunel1t-wide section of ti,e CAFR, do not 
account for loca l fund restrictions, project assiglUnents and/or policy reserves as classified 
witilin ti,e goverIUnental fund section of ti,e report. 

• Governmental activities reported ending llet position of $77.6M, a decrease of $17.8 million, 
0 1' 19%. The decr ase in govemment net position arises !Tom the impact of ti,e 
implemen tation of GASB 68, which is offset by stTong properly tax and transient 
occupancy tax revenues. 

• Business activities reported ending net position of $17.1M, an incl'ease of $.3 M or 2% due 
to positive operating results in the Sewer and Solid Waste Funds with partial offsets of 
Storm Dra in activity losses. 

• On a combined basis, restricted net position amounted to $17.8M vs. $17.6M last year and 
represents the extent to which flmds are categorically constrained. 

Fund Level View 

• The General Fund realized an operating surplus of $6.3M, a $1.0M decrease fro m Il,e prior 
year. This surplus is largely atb'ibutable to higher than anticipated properly tax and 
transient occupancy tax revenues coupled will, contained spend ing. 

• Genera l Fund revenues, excluding transfers, increased slighlly over prior year aduals by 
$.09M or less than 1 % to $36.1M. Current yeru' results also exceeded budget estimates by 
10%. Related expenditures increased by $1.1M to $29.8M, Or 4%, as a result of filling 
positions held va ant dwing ti,e economic downlurn . 

• Total governmental fw,d balances equa.led $52.6M at fiscal year-end, a stron g increase of 
$6.4M, or 14%, due to increased tax dollars and focused cos t savings efforts. Significant 
expenditures we,'e boll, expected and realized in the capital improvementfUl,ds. 

• General govel'1lment capital spending totaJed approximately $2.4M. The level of capital 
reinvesbnent in Los Altos reflects a sustained focus on ti,e maint nance of streets, facilities, 
traffic calming efforts and safety. The Capital Improvements Projects Fund balance 
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increased by $,56M due to incoming grant and special purpose revenues to end the year at 
$4,7M, 

• The Traffic Impact Fee FWld ended U,e year with a fund balance of $1,9M with revenues of 
$260,000 offset by transfer to tl1e Capital Projects Fund of $320,000, 

• The Gas Tax F1U1d balance decreased by $342,000 to $1M with U,e use of funds for ca pital 
projects outpacing revenues for U,e year, 

• Sewer operations ended the year favorably with an increase in net position of $1 ,6M, 
Sewer revenues were at $6,3M, the same as in 2014 as a result of a write-off for a prior year 
overbilling offse tting the multi-year rate increase program, Operating expenses increased 
by $214,000 to $4,8M, A review of maintenance expenses ref! cts continued attention to 
systenl maintenance. 

• As in tl1e prior year, Ute Storm Drain Fund has exhausted available resourc s, These 
operations a1'e now fully General Flmd-subsidized and will continue to be absent U,e 
implementation of a fee-based model. 

• BOtl1 workers' compensation and general liability claim liabilities had changes from tl1e 
prior year due to recognition of tl1e City's claims liability at the 80% confidence level. The 
Workers' Compensa tion Fund ended Ute year WiU, an umestTicted net position of $116,610, 
a decrease of $618,561, The General Liability FlU1d ended the year with w,restricted net 
position of $609,919, an increase of $90,341, BoU, funds covel' their actuaria l valuations, 
which coupled with a proactive risk management program, make tl1e City well positioned 
to address claim liabilities, 

• Otl1er Non-major Govel'lUllental FlUlds ended the year with a total combined fund balance 
of $7,2M, a decrease of $,4M 0 1' 5%, 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an inb'oduction to tl1e City's basic financial 
statements, which is comprised of U,ree components: 1) govenunent-wide financial statements; 
2) fund financial statement ; and 3) not s to the financial s tatements, This report also contains 
other supplemental'Y information in addition to the basic financial sta tements themselves, 

Reporting on the City as a Whole 

Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers witl1 a broad overview of the Ci ty's finances in a manner similar to a private 
sector business. 

The sta tement of net pOSition presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, witl1 
tl1e difference be tween U,e tw o reported as net position, Over time, increases 0 1' decreases in net 
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position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving 0 1' deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents how the govenunent's net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the chan ge occurs, regardless of U,e timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in Uus statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., llncollected taxes a.nd earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of U,e government-wide fUlancia l statements distinguish functions of U,e City U,at al'e 
principally supported by taxes and intergovenunental revenues (gove1'11mental act.ivit.ies) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all Or a siglUficant portion of U,eir costs Ull'ough 
user fees aI1d charges (businesS-hjpe activities). The govenunental activities of the City incl ude 
general government, public safety, maintenaI1ce aI1d public works services, planning, building, 
engineering alld recreation . The City's business-type activities include water, was tewater, storm 
wa tel' and parking. 

The government-wide finaIlcial statements CaIl be found on pages _ to _ of this r port. 

Reporting on the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund FinaI1cial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts U,at is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segrega ted for sp cific ac tivities or objectives. The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensm e alld demonstrate 
compliance witll finance-related legal requirem nts. All of U,e fWlds of U,e City can be divided 
into U,ree ca tegories: governmental funds; proprietal'y funds; alld fiducial'y funds. 

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmelltal activities in the government-wide financial statements. How vel', 
wilike U,e govenunent-wide fulaI1cial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balaIlces of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fi scal yeal·. Such information may be useful in evaluatiJlg a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because U,e focus of govermnental funds is narrower U,an U1at of U1.e government-wide 
finaI1cial statements, it is useful to compare U,e information presented for govermnental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in Ule govenunent-wide 
financial stat ments. By doing so, readers may bettel' wlderstand tlle long-term impact of U,e 
government's near-term finan ing decisions. BOUl the governmental fWld balallce sheet aI1d 
govermnental fund statement of revenues, expenditUl'es aI1d cllaI1ges in fund balances provide 
a reconcilia tion to facilita te Uus comparison between governmenta l funds and govel'l1mental 
activities. 

The City maintains 16 individual governmental fullds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in U,e governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and chaIlges in fund balances for the General FWld, In-Lieu Park Land Special 
Revenue Flmd, and Capital Project FWld, all of wluch are considered to be major funds. Data 
from the other 13 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
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Individual fund data for each of these non-major govermnental funds is pmvided in ~,e form of 
combining statements elsewhere in the fund financial sta tements sec tion of U,is report. 

An almual appropriated budget is adopted each y ar for each governmental fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided f Ol' several key governmental funds to demonstrate 
compliance wiU1 this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be fOlmd on pages _ to _ of Uus report. 

Proprietary Funds: The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Services for which the 
Ci ty charges customers a fee are generally reported in the City's enterprise funds. These 
proprietary funds, like U,e government-wide statemen ts, provide boU1 long-term and short­
term financial information. In ternal service funds are an accounting device used to accllmu.iate 
and allocate costs internally among the City's Val'ious functions. The City uses internal service 
funds to account for its City dental plall, unemployment insurance, Workers' Compensation 
alld Liability Insurance cos ts. Because U,ese services predominal,tly beneHt the governmental 
function, they have been included in u'e government-wide fi.nancial statements and related 
intra-fund charges have been eliminated accordingly. 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as U,e government­
wide financial statements, only in more detail. AU four internal service ftmds are combined into 
a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial sta tements. Individual fund 
data for the internal service funds is pl'Ovid din u'e form of combining statemen ts elsewhere in 
this I' port. The City's U, ree enterprise funds (5 wer, Solid Waste and Storm Drain) are 
considered major funds and presented as such in the ftuld financial statements. The City follows 
U,e practice of adopting annual budgets for these operations as well. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in relation to non-major governmental funds, 
proprietary and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to u'e 
financia l statements. Combining alld individual fund statements and sclledules can be found on 
pages _ to _ of tlus report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information U,at is 
essential to a full understanding of U,e data provided in the government-wide alld fund 
financial statements. These can be found on pages _ to_ of tlus report. 

Other Information: In addition to ti,e basic final,cial statements and accompanying notes, U,is 
report also presents certain requ.ired supplementary information concel'lUng tI,e City's budget-to­
actual financial comparisons for u'e General Fund . The City has elected to present tlus 
information wiUun tI,e basic financial statement and financial statement sections of the report. 

The City as Trustee 

Fiduciary Funds: The Ci ty is tI,e trustee, or fiduciary, for the Nortll County Library AuU,ori ty 
and three specia l assessment districts - Raymtu,do and Avalon curb and gutter improvements, 
and Blue Oak Sewer Lane inlprovements. Fiduciary fcmds are used to accowlt for resources 
held for U,e ben fit of parties outside U,e government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in U, 
govenunent-wide financial statements because tI,e resources of those funds are not available to 
support u'e City's own programs. The Ci ty is responsible foJ' ensuring that tI,e assets reported 
in tI,ese funds are used fol' U,eir in tended purposes. 
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In summary, the various sections of tItis financial report are arranged as follows: 

Summa ry~------------------- -------.-- ---------- ---------- ------Deta i I 

Fina ncia l Fund 
Combining 
Fina n cia l 

S oction (/) Financia l S tatem e nts & 
Statem ents (1/1) S c hedules (V) 

N on Major 
Management Governme nts' & 

Discussion Budgeta ry Proprietary 
& Analvs ls Fund Statements Funds 

Government Notes to Statis tical 

Wide 
Financia l S ection (VI) 

Fina n cia l S tatem e nts (IV) (U n-audited) 

Stateme nts (/I) 

Sta tements of 
N et Assets & 

Activities 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

This analysis focuses on the net position and changes in n t position at the City-wide level as 
presented in the statemen t of net position ru1d statement of activities which are sununarized 
b low as of June 30, 2015. As noted eru'!ier, net position may serve over time as a useful 
indica tor of a government's financial posi tion. On a combined basis, the City experienced a 
decl'ease of $17.4M or 16% in net position, pl'imarily l'esulting from tile implementation of 
GASB 68 ru1d the recognition of the City's net pension liabili ty . A summary is noted below: 
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Oty of Los Altos Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2015 2014 2015 2014 

Cash and Investments $ 59,544,062 $ 52,467,447 $ 10,189,988 $ 7,835,171 

Other Assets 1,413,846 1,240,888 252,407 721,296 

Capital Assets 50,643,720 51,829,474 8,662,137 8,717,527 

Total Assets $ 111,601,628 $ 105,537,809 $ 19,104,532 $ 17,273,994 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 1,914,209 144,081 
Related to Pension (Note 10) 

Bond Debt 1,565,000 1,665,000 

Other Lia bili ties 28,431,049 8,469,163 1,680,200 469,571 

Total Liabilities $ 29,996,049 $ 10,134,163 $ 1,680,200 $ 469,571 

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 5,879,287 442,527 
Related lO Pens;on (NOl. 10) 

Net Position 
Net Investments in 49,078,720 50,164,474 8,662,137 8,717,527 

Capital Assets 
Resh'icted 17,815,285 17,629,321 

UlU'estricted 10,746,496 27,623,571 8,471,807 8,086,896 
Total Net Position $ 77,640,501 $ 95,417,366 $ 17,133,944 $ 16,804,423 

Invesbnent in capital assets m akes up U,e largest portion of U,e Oty's n et position, over fifty 
percent (61 %), These assets reflect land, bltildings, infras b'l1cture, machinery and equipment, 
less any associa ted outstanding debt. As U,ese asse ts represent fowldational infras tructure used 
in support of basic City services, they are gen erally n ot available for future spend ing, 

An additional portion of tlle O ty's ne t position, twenty-one percent (21 %), represen t resources 
subject to external spending restrictions, The rem aining tw nty-two percent (22%) of ne t 
position a re defined as um stricted and generally availabl for future capital projects and 
discretionary use wiU, llie ca veat tl,ese flmds are a composite of several governmental funds 
which may include assign ed project commitments and assignments specifically associated willi 
active and ongoing projects, 

Some key entity-wi de observations include U,e following: 
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• Cash and inves tments holdings increased by 16%, a factor of favorable revenue 
collections, cost savings and collection of one-time fees, which include the City "eaching 
new highs in both properly tax and transient occupancy tax collection .. 

• Net position equaled $94.8M, a decrease of $17.4M 01' 16%, largely due to the 
implementation of GASB 68 and the recognition of the City's $19.6 million net pension 
liability. 

• Substantial capital improvements, approximating $2.7M, were realized . These include 
pedestrian an.d bicycle sa fety enhancemen ts, sb'eet repairs and sb'iping, major 
streetscape and intersec tion enhancements, concrete repairs, facility maintenance, and 
safely teclmology improvements. 

• Business-type activi ties reported net position of $17.1M at year end, a $.3M, Or 2%, 
increase. The Sewer Master Plan has been completed along with a multi-year rate 
adjustment progra m to provid resources to addr ss sewer infrasb'ucture rehabilitation. 
Solid Waste r venues exceeded direct exp nses allowing for future initiatives in this 
important environmental area of opera tions. 

Governmental Activities 

Goverrunental programs, which include general public services, realized revenue decreases of 
$l.lM, or 3%, while total expenditures increased by 8% OJ' $2.4M. Including all sources and 
uses, governmental net position increased by $4.4M, or 6%, ending ~le year with a total fund 
balance of $77.6M. 

• Property tax continues to be the Cily's single larg st SOllrce of rev nue representing 
abo ut 45% of gen ral government-wide revenues. Property tax continued its aggressive 
growth increasing by $1.9M, or 12%. 

• Charges for services, making up 20% of government revenues, decreased as expected as 
community development fees decreased hom the prior year amount which inclllded 
revenues from several Significant development projec ts that began consb'uction in 2014. 
This revenue ca tegOlY was again bolstered by gains Ul recreation programming and 
contilluing strong levels in residential remodel and rebuilding activity. Both community 
development and recreation services continue to capitalize on ~,eir cos t recovery goals. 

• Other major taxes showed stability with an increase of $246,000, or 3%, led by a 21 % 
increase in hotel occupancy tax, resultil1g hom ~,e opening of a thu'd hotel Ul t:he City 
and the strong regional business climate. 

• Interest revenues, while sti ll lagging as a result of historically low interest rates, 
increased 103% from fue prior year due to growth of the City's investment portfolio and 
more aggreSSive uwestment strategies. 

• Government expenses, including allocated capital maintenance costs, increased by $2.4 
million or 7%. This increase is primaJ'Uy ~le result of !:he Cily's effort to fiJI positions ~,at 
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were held vacant during the economic downturn, Interes t on long-term debt remained 
flat reflective of the City's low debt level. 

A comparison of the governmenta l activities and business-type activities program revenues and 
expenses for th e current yem' and priOl' yea r is presented below: 

City of Los Altos Changes in Net Position 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015 

Govel'nment Business 
2015 2014 2015 

Revenues 

Program Revenue 
Charges for Services $ 7,677,037 $ 8,566,404 $ 7,116,293 $ 
Operating Grants and Contributions 956,728 1,066,009 
Capitat Grants and Contributions 527,709 833,333 
General Revenue 

Property Tax 17,479,882 15,586,329 
Sales Tax 2,942,764 2,809,489 
Util ity User Tax 2,522,536 2,600,034 
Other Taxes 3,732,376 3,541,706 
Franchise Fees 1,807,854 1,904,717 
Interest Income 199,848 98,586 
Sale of Capital Assets 2,846,263 
Miscellaneous 1,123,511 212,019 40,212 
Total Revenues 38,970,245 40,064,889 7,156,505 

Expenses 
Public Safety 15,636,023 14,884,049 
Public Works 7,058,443 6,452,958 
Recreation 2,976,441 2,656,492 
Community Development 4,590,094 3,803,963 
Admin/Community Services 4,001,840 4,037,950 
Interest 011 LongMTerm Debt 68,250 70,845 
Sewer 4,788,574 
Solid Waste 346,947 
Stann Dl'ain 214,530 

Total Expenses 34,331,091 31,906,257 5,350,051 
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers 4,639,154 8,158,632 1,806,454 
Tra nsfers (195,573) (152,069) 195,573 
Loss on DisposaJ of Assets 
Change in Net Assets 4,443,581 8,006,563 2,002,027 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 73,196,920 87,410,803 15,131,917 
Net Assets· End of Year $ 77,MO,501 $ 95,417,366 $ 17,133,944 $ 

Note: Due /0 the jll;P/eIllQfI/aliofl of fbe prrJllllioM ofGASB StatemeNts No. 68 (Iud 71, begi"',;ng flet positiON/vas rtdllced f!J 
122,220,446 in 2015. See Note 7H j;rjmther il/forIJ/a/iolt. 

2014 

7,112,752 

28,066 
7,140,818 

4,573,711 
366,102 
164,941 

5,104,754 
2,036,064 

152,069 

2,188,133 
14,616,290 
16,804,423 
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Business-Type Activities 

The programs for the business-type activities include sewer and solid waste collection 
management. These activities represent 18% of the total net position. Net position from 
business-type activities increased by $2.0M, or 13%, primarily due to favorable operating results 
in the sewer fund. 

• The Joint Sewer System Authority (JSSA) formed in 1968 by a joint exercise of powers among 
the Cities of Palo Alto, Mountain View and Los Altos, constructed, maintains and operates 
sewage treatment facilities serving its melnber cities. The City of Palo Alto acts as 
administrator for JSSA and bills each lltelltber its share of the operating costs. The City is 
obligated through the yeal' 2018 under an operating agreelnent with the City of Palo Alto for 
water treatment plant and sewer services. Payments under this agreelnent are based on 
expected usage and are adjusted annually based on actual use and site operating costs. 

• Sewer revenue remained relatively unchanged from the prior year as the result of a multi­
year rate increase program offset by a write-off for a prior year overbilling. 

• Sewer expenditures increased 5 % from the prior year, increasing by $214,000. Net position 
increased by $1.6M to bring the year end net position to $14.3M. 

• Revenue for solid waste collections increased by $31,000, or 4 %, in accordance with the City's 
agreenlent for administrative fee support, with a slight decrease in expenditures of $19,155,. 
Total net position in the fund increased by $452,000 leaving a total net position of $2.9M. 

• The General Fund contributed to the Storm Drain Fund to augment annual expenses. For FY 
2014/15 the tr31LSfer equaled $195,573 to cover annual operational costs. As projected in 
budgetary estimates and the prior year financial reports, this fund has exhausted its reserves. 
Currently, the Storm Drain and Urban Runoff Pollution Control Programs (URPP) are 
categorized as enterprise activities, but lacking a fee that pays for these services, the City may 
need to consider Storm Drain and URPP as General Fund activities. 

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City's governlnental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the City's financing requirenlents. In particular, unassigned or committed fund 
balances may serve as a usefullneasure of a government's net resources available for use at the 
end of the fiscal year. Fund balances have been re-categorized and presented in cOlltpliance 
with GASB 54. 

The City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $52.6M, an increase 
of $6.4M or 14%. Of the total combined balance, 14% remains as unassigned and without 
commitment. 
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The City has taken the prudent path of defining and assigning established key fund balance 
reServeS as called out in adopted financial policies and projected in fiscal forecast. These key 
reserves aTe as defined as follows: 

Gcm"-,,I 1'11",1 C(mtlllgt'IlClll~('s('rtl('~ /1I11l' 30, 20Ll 

Emergency Operating 

General Fund Capi tal and Equipment 

Unrese17)ed Fund Balance 

Tota l General Fund Available Funds 

$6,705,000 

$18,760,240 

4,788,160 

$30,253,400 

The emergency and operating reserves, components of the General Fund, ar sa feguards in Ule 
event of an economic or financial crisis. SiInilaTly, tile state budget stabilization reSerVe was 
crea ted in response to California's delica te fisca l condition during tJ,e grea t recession. 

The City has set aside $2,000,000, an increase of $1,150,000 over las t yeru', for OU,er Post 
Employee B nefits (OPEB) to initiate funding of miIlli:num post-retirement healtJ,liabilities as 
prescribed by CALPERS healUl plans. The OPEB reserve was created in response to GASB 45. 

The Ci ty has also set aside a PERS Stabilization Fund to address anticipated future increases in 
tile City's retirement liability. As of Jlrne 30, 2015, this initial set-aside totaled $600,000. 

Overall favorable operating results have led to a total General Fund balance of $34.8M, after 
l]"an5fers, and an lmassigned fund balrulCe of $4.8M. These amounts align closely with long­
term budge tary forecast and the adopted biennial operating plrul. 

Beyond tile General FWld, oU,er funds also have key balances of importance in supporting the 
City's fi sca l plan. These are swnmarized as follows: 

Oil,,·,. Ke'!/ filII" /lalallce's /111'" 30,201 5 

Capital Projects Fund 
In-Lieu Park Land Fund 

Tota l 

$4,713,620 

5,907,033 

$10,620,653 

Th City continues to maintain a respectable reserve of in-lieu park funds, reslTicted as to parks, 
park land and recreation uses, at $5.9 million as result of tJle significant private development 
activity in Los Altos. These, and U,e oU,er dollru's listed above, are rulticipated to apply to 
future capital needs. 

The Capital Projects Fun d balance varies materially as progress occurs on approved projects 
and external fWlding becomes available. In FY 2014/15, general government capital project 
spendmg approxiIna ted $2.4M, a significrult .level conunensurat witil U,e prior yeaI'. Beyond 
fundmg previously approved projects, tile City remains challenged to address U,e long list of 
identified ruld unfwlded projects for futwe consideration. 

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary funds provide tile same type of information found in tile 
government-wide finrulcial statements, but WiU, more detail. 
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Unrestricted net position at the end of the year in the Sewer FtUld was at $5.6M including 
approved capital projects. The Storm Drain FtUld balance remains dependent on the General 
FWld w hile the Solid Waste Fund increased to $2.8M. Fac tors concerning the changes in fund 
balance in these ftUlds have already been addressed in ~'e discu sion of ~'e City's business-type 
activities. 

Both the Sewer and Solid Waste funds receive revenu s from the City as a Ctls tomer for routine 
service opera tions. In FY 2014/15 the CiLy paid approximately $37,900 in sewer fees and 
$293,902 in waste hauling and disposal services. These amounts are recorded within the 
"Chal'ges for Services" revenue line item in the proprietary financial statemen ts. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets: The CiLy's investment in capital assets foJ' its governm ental and business-type 
activities at year-end amounts to $57.7M (net of accumula ted depreciation) . 

Investments in capital assets include land, buildings, inlprovements, machinery, sLTeets, 
infrastruct1lre and equipment. Govel'l1ll1ental capital assets totaled $49.1M and those of 
business-Lype activities totaled $8.7M. Assets decreased by $l.2M overall Wi~' depreciation 
outpacing new additions. Additional informa tion on capital assets can be fo und in. footnote 4 of 
U, 5 financial s ta tements as part of ~le summary listed below: 

Capital Assets as of June 30, 2015 

GOl'(,J'lIIJH'ul Busill l'sS 201 5 2() 14 
Acl w ilies Activ iti('~ r otai '10 /0 / 

Land $10,622,285 ° $10,622,285 $10,711,785 

Work i1l Progress 2,438,421 273,663 2,712,084 2,181,422 

Buildillgs 12,677,772 8,233,318 20,911,090 21,618,425 

Improvenze.nts 3,317,215 ° 3,317,215 3,455,668 

Machillery & Equip 854,965 155,156 1,010,121 1,319,686 

Irlfrastructure 20,733,062 ° 20,733,062 21,349,515 

Total Assets $50,643,720 $8,662,137 $59,305,857 $60,636,501 

Less Related Debt (1,565,000) (1,565,000) (1,754,500) 

Net 1I1vestrll""t i" Capital Assets $49,078,720 $8,662,137 $57,740,857 $58,882,001 

Debt Administration: At the end of U,e current fiscal yeal', CiLy bond and assessment debt 
decreased by approximately $100,000. The total outstanding bond d bt balance a t year-end is 
approximately $1.6M and relates solly to ~le purchase of Rosita Park (formerly known as the 
Saint Williams site). No additional debt was incurred and Ule City has nO Significant capital 
leases . 

OU,er debt consists of long-term employee compensated absence obliga tions of $1.6M, fo r 
general and business activi ties, a fac tor of accumulated balances at year-end. 

Additional information on long-term obliga tions Call be fOWld in footnote 5 to these financial 
statements . 
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Long-Term Debt as ofJune 30, 2015 

Certificate oj Participatiol/ 

Compel/sated Absences 

To tal 

GOV(,I'II11I£'1l1 BlIs ilJ (,~s 2015 201 4 
A cliv ili('s Acti l' ili('~ 1010/ lolaf 

$1,565,000 

1,546,593 

$3,111,593 

$0 

47,148 

$47,148 

$1,565,000 

1,593,856 

$3,158,856 

$1,665,000 

1,593,856 

$3,258,856 

The City also carries a year-end net Post-Retirement Health obliga tion (OPEB) of $1,606,185. 
This obliga tion increased in line with annual ac luarial valuations and is a factor of benefit levels 
and population metrics. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The FY 2014/15 General Fund budget, adopted as part of the biennial plan, equaled $31.8M. 
Bud get to actual results came in favorably with l' venues exceed ing estimates by $3.2M 01' 10% 
and expenditures coming in at 6% below es tablished Hmits, for year-end revenues over 
expendi tures of $5.2M. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FY 2015/17 BIENNIAL BUDGET AND RATES 

General Fund revenue is forecast to increase by 8.2% P r the FY 2015/16 budget while expendilw· s 
are budgeted to increase by 4.5%. The 2015/16 budget anticipates that the City will retum to full 
staffing after several years of maintaining vacancies dUl-ing the ecollomic downturn. The budget also 
reflects increases for the City's pension costs. 111e Cily is also evaluating the funding of aging cily 
facilities and the fiscal impact of published and pending master plans. 

The biennial budget was developed to maintain sound fiscal posture, p,·es nt a balanced GeJ.leral 
Fund and enhance reserve levels to address aging infrastructure replacement. 111e budget also 
integrates a comprehensive five-year Capital Improvement Program and strategic forecasts. Key 
budget highlights are noted below: 

• Revenues are expected to increase in line WiUl current year results. The City maintains a 20% 
General Fund reserve as endorsed in 2008/09 by the Cily Council. 111e Cily continues to 
fund its OPEB reserve along with a PERS reserve to offset the impact of futme increases in 
retil·ement costs. 111e City has also set aside ftUlds for future capital i.nv stments in 
technology initiatives. 

• 111e budget projects an increase of 5% i.n properly tax receipts, nOMg conMual improvement 
in properly values. 11lis projection includes secured property tax, unsecllfed properly tax, 
homeowner properly tax relief, properly lax in lieu of vellicle license fees and supplemental 
property tax. Prop rty tax makes up nearly half of aU governmental ftmds revenue. 

• Other key taxes are estima ted to experience moderate increases in the 1 % range. 
Utilizing the most recent data and regional aJld nationa.l trends, key City tax revenues 
including sal s tax, hotel occupancy tax, and motor vehicle license fees are anticipated to 
continue prior yea r growth with modest increases. 
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• Planning and building activity has shown significant development strength and has 
projected a 4 % increase in this revenue base. These projections still anticipate strength in 
local activity. 

• Total authorized positions remain steady at 131 full time equivalent employees. 

• The two-year budget honors existing multi-year labor contracts. Salaries for filled 
authorized positions remain within budget projections. 

• General operational costs were held relatively flat growing by 6.2% at the end of year 
two. The return to full staffing along with rising pension and healthcare costs are the 
main contributors to the with the City maintaining all other operating 
expenditures close to current levels. 

• Overall, PERS pension rates increased but were mitigated by the pay-down of the City's 
side-fund liability which was fully paid down in FY 2012/13. Rates for public safety and 
miscellaneous employees increased from prior year levels as recent changes in 
legislation and assumptions continue to drive pension costs. Health insurance rates are 
assumed to increase by at least 7.5 %. 

• In 2011/12, the City successfully implemented a second-tier pension model that lowers 
the level of benefit for new hires. This change is anticipated to render material savings as 
the years evolve. The State of California also mandated pension reform effective 2013 
that imposed yet another third and lower benefit plan for new prospective enrollees. 

• The budget incorporates storm water-related costs into the General Fund budget while the 
City contemplates potential funding options for this program. 

For a more current discussion of the state of the economy beyond those assumptions made in the FY 
2015/17 two-year budget process, the reader should also refer to the transrnittalletter included in 
this document. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANOAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide Los Altos citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report, or request for additional financial information, should be 
addressed to the Administrative Services Director, 1 North San Antonio Road, Los Altos, CA 94022. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments (Note 2) 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Prepaid items and inventory (Note 1H) 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 
Capital assets (Note 4): 
Non~depreciable 

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pension (Note 10) 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Interest payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Other payable 
Compensated absences payable, due in one year (Note 6) 
Claims and judgements payable, due in one year (Note 8) 
Long~term debt, due in one year (Note 5) 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences payable, due in more than one year (Note 6) 
Net pension liability (Note 10) 
Net OPEB obligation (Note 11) 
Claims and judgments payable, due in more than one year (Note 8) 
Long-term debt, due in more than one year (Note 5) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pension (Note 10) 

NET POSITION (Note 7) 
Net investments in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Special revenue programs 
Capital proj ects 

Total Restricted Net Position 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

$59,372,102 
1,337,499 

54,486 
21,861 

60,785,948 

171,960 

13,060,706 
37,583,014 

1,914,209 

2,355,116 
10,595 

431,396 
196,332 
386,648 
622,968 
105,000 

1,159,945 
18,243,234 

1,501,783 
3,523,032 

29,996,049 

364,179 
10,250,058 
7,201,048 

17,815,285 

10,746,496 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$10,189,988 
252,407 

10,442,395 

273,663 
8,388,474 

8,662,137 

131,620 

23,884 

11,787 

35,361 
1,373,146 

104,402 

1,680,200 

442,527 

Total 

$69,562,090 
1,589,906 

54,486 

71,228,343 

171,960 

13,334,369 
45,971,488 

59,477,817 

130,706,160 

2,058,290 

2,486,736 
10,595 

455,280 
196,332 
398,435 
622,968 
105,000 

4,275,346 

1,195,306 
19,616,380 

1,606,185 
3,523,032 
1,460,000 

27,400,903 

31,676,249 

6,321,814 

57,740,857 

364,179 
10,250,058 
7,201,048 

17,815,285 

19,218,303 

$94,774,445 
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Functions/Programs 
Primary government: 

Governmental Activities: 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Community development 
Admin / community services 
Interest on long-tenn debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business·type Activities: 
Sewer 
Solid waste 
Stonndrain 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total primary government 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Utility users' tax 
Other taxes 
Franchise fees 

Total taxes 

Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers, net 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position.Beginning, as adjusted (Note 7H) 

Net Position-Ending 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

$15,636,023 
7,058,443 
2,976,441 
4,590,094 
4,001,840 

34,331,091 

4,788,574 
346,947 
214,530 

5,350,051 

$39,681,142 

Charges for 

$897,687 
32,877 

2,167,093 
3,625,147 

954,233 

7,677,037 

6,328,464 
785,865 

1,964 

7,116,293 

Grants and Grants and 

$109,348 
504,358 

343,022 

956,728 

$497,709 

30,000 

527,709 

$527,709 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$1,007,035 
1,034,944 
2,167,093 
3,998,169 

954,233 

9,161,474 

6,328,464 
785,865 

1,964 

7,116,293 

$16,277,767 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities 

($14,628,988) ($14,628,988) 
(6,023,499) (6,023,499) 

(809,348) (809,348) 
(591,925) (591,925) 

(3,047,607) (3,047,607) 
(68,250) (68,250) 

(25,169,617) 

$1,539,890 1,539,890 
438,918 438,918 

(212,566) (212,566) 

1,766,242 1,766,242 

(25,169,617) 1,766,242 (23,403,375) 

17,479,882 17,479,882 
2,942,764 2,942,764 
2,522,536 2,522,536 
3,732,376 3,732,376 
1,807,854 

28,485,412 28,485,412 

199,848 199,848 
1,123,511 40,212 1,163,723 

195,573 

29,613,198 235,785 29,848,983 

4,443,581 2,002,027 6,445,608 

73,196,920 15,131,917 88,328,837 

$77,640,501 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal 2015. Individual non-major 
funds may be found in the Supplemental section. 

GENERAL FUND 

Accounts for all financial resources necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the City that are not 
accounted for in other funds. The General Fund supports essential City services such as police, fire, street and 
parks maintenance, maintenance services, community development and recreation activities. The General Fund 
also includes the Real Property Proceeds Funds, which accounts for the proceeds from the sale of real property 
and the Community Facilities Renewal Fund, which accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to the 
community facilities renewal efforts. 

IN-LIEU PARKLAND FUND 

Accounts for revenues received in lieu of parkland dedications. The revenues are dedicated for purchasing or 
improving park or recreational facilities. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Accounts for the acquisition and construction of major capital projects and plans that are financed by resources 
other than proprietary funds. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 2) 
Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles: 

Accounts 
Interest 

Prepaids 
Inventory (Note 1 H) 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Other payable 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Fund balance (Note 7): 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2015 

In-Lieu 
ParkLand 

$35,988,248 $5,902,319 

1,085,656 
45,631 4,714 
13,613 
8,248 

$1,714,630 

431,396 

2,342,358 

444,635 
$5,907,033 

29,565,241 
4,789,162 

34,799,038 5,907,033 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Capital Other Total 
Projects Governmental Governmental 

Fund 

$5,062,212 $7,024,702 $53,977,481 

171,960 171,960 

215,878 25,832 1,327,366 
4,141 54,486 

13,613 
8,248 

$564,470 $32,003 $2,311,103 

431,396 

564,470 32,003 2,938,831 

444,635 
4,707,204 10,614,237 

4,713,620 2,487,428 36,766,289 
4,789,162 

4,713,620 7,194,632 52,614,323 



REVIEW DRAFT 29 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
Reconciliation of the 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -- BALANCE SHEET 
with the 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30,2015 

Fund balances of governmental funds 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current financial 
resources. Therefore, were not reported in the governmental 
funds balance sheet: 

Land, buildings, property, equipment and infrastructure, net 

Interest payable on longwterm debt does not require current financial 
resources. Therefore, interest payable was not reported as a 
liability in the governmental funds balance sheet. 

Deferred outflows below are not current assets of financial resources; 
and the deferred inflows are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds. 

Deferred outflows 
Deferred inflows 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. 
Therefore, they were not reported in the governmental funds 
balance sheet. 

Long-term debt - current portion 
Long-term debt - noncurrent portion 
Net pension liability 
Net OPEB obligation 
Compensated absences - current portion 
Compensated absences - noncurrent portion 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs 
of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities 
of the internal service funds are included in governmental 
activities in the governmental-wide statement of net position. 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$52,614,323 

50,643,720 

(10,595) 

1,914,209 
(5,879,287) 

(105,000) 
(1,460,000) 

(18,243,234) 
(1,501,783) 

(386,648) 
(1,159,945) 

1,214,741 

$77,640,501 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

In-Lieu Capital Other 
ParkLand Projects Governmental 

Funds 

REVENUES 
Property tax $17,479,882 

Sales tax 2,942,764 

Utility users 2,522,536 

Other tax 3,744,657 
Licenses, permits and fees 3,633,722 $290,801 
Intergovernmental $62,708 964,221 
Grants and donations 2,286 $402,292 468,022 
Charges for services 4,611,203 86,680 
Fines and forfeitures 143,566 17,810 
Interest and rentals 228,562 29,134 32,982 
Other 800,547 220 505,650 

Total Revenues 36,109,725 402,512 2,366,166 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Public safety 15,127,728 
Public works 4,306,760 
Recreation 2,388,776 
Community development 4,182,000 38,619 
Admin / community development 3,770,298 

Capital improvements 2,115,704 319,331 
Debt service: 

Principal 100,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 68,808 

Total Expenditures 29,775,562 2,115,704 526,758 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 6,334,163 91,842 (1,713,192) 1,839,408 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (Note 3) 307,810 2,715,080 609,041 
Transfers (out) (Note 3) (471,289) (56,773) (440,262) (2,859,180) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,274,818 (2,250,139) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 6,170,684 35,069 561,626 (410,731) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 7,605,363 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $34,799,038 $5,907,033 $4,713,620 $7,194,632 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$17,479,882 
2,942,764 

2,522,536 
3,744,657 
3,924,523 
1,026,929 

872,600 
4,697,883 

161,376 
290,678 

38,970,245 

15,127,728 
4,306,760 
2,388,776 
4,220,619 
3,770,298 
2,435,035 

100,000 
68,808 

32,418,024 

6,552,221 

3,631,931 
(3,827,504 ) 

(195,573) 

6,356,648 

46,257,675 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
Reconciliation of the 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
with the 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS 

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
government-wide statement of activities and changes in net position, the 
cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded 
in the current period. 

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government wide 
statement of activities and changes in net position, but they do not require the use 
of current fmancial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
the repayment reduces long-tenn liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Principal payment 

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide 
or require the use of current fmancial resources and therefore are not reported 
as revenue or expenditures in governmental funds (net change): 

Compensated absences 
Interest payable 
Net OPEB obligation 
Net pension obligation, and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain 
activities such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue ofthe 
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 

Changes in net position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to fmandal statements 

$6,356,648 

680,386 

(1,866,140) 

100,000 

645 
558 

(375,480) 
12,134 

(465,170) 

$4,443,581 
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MAJORPROPIDETARYFUNDS 

Proprietary funds account for City operations fmanced and operated in a manner similar to a private business 
enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be fmanced primarily through 
user charges. 

The City reported all of its Enterprise Funds as maj or funds in fiscal 2015. 

SEWER 

To account for the operation (including waste water treatment) of the City's sewer treatment activities, a self­
supporting activity which provides services on a user charge basis. 

SOLID WASTE 

To account for the collection and disposal of solid waste, a self-supporting activity that provides service on a user 
charge basis. 

STORM DRAIN 

To account for the operation of the City's urban runoff and storm drain activities. 
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ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and investments (Note 2) 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Capital assets (Note 4): 

Nondepreciable 
Depreciable 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net 

Total non-current Assets 

Total Assets 

DEFERRAL OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pension (Note 10) 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Compensated absences (Note 6) 
Claims and judgements (Note 8) 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Compensated absences (Note 6) 
Net pension liabilities (Note 10) 
Net OPEB obligation (Note 11) 
Claims and judgements (Note 8) 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRAL INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pension (Note 10) 

NET POSITION (Note 7) 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted ( deficit) 

Total Net Position 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds 

Sewer 

$7,374,473 
187,675 

5,832 

7,567,980 

273,663 
18,272,651 
(9,884,177) 

8,662,137 

8,662,137 

16,230,117 

144,081 

114,783 
20,934 
11,787 

147,504 

35,361 
1,373,146 

80,309 

1,488,816 

1,636,320 

442,527 

Solid Waste 

$2,815,515 
64,732 

2,226 

2,882,473 

2,882,473 

16,837 
1,147 

17,984 

8,031 

8,031 

26,015 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Storm 
Drain 

$1,969,221 

1,803 

1,803 

16,062 

16,062 

17,865 

Totals 

$10,189,988 
252,407 

8,058 

10,450,453 

273,663 
20,241,872 

(11,853,398) 

8,662,137 

8,662,137 

19,112,590 

144,081 

131,620 
23,884 
11,787 

167,291 

35,361 
1,373,146 

104,402 

1,512,909 

1,680,200 

442,527 

Governmental 
Activities­

Internal Service 

$5,394,621 
10,133 

5,404,754 

5,404,754 

44,013 

666,981 

3,523,032 

3,523,032 

4,190,013 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental 
Activities-

Storm Internal Service 
Sewer Solid Waste Drain Totals Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $7,116,293 $1,756,278 

Total Operating Revenues 7,116,293 1,756,278 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Outside services 3,311,451 262,763 85,150 3,659,364 159,158 
Employee services 855,869 65,317 129,380 1,050,566 1,543,415 
Repairs and maintenance 272,208 272,208 469,657 
Claims reimbursement 49,218 
Insurance 51,188 18,867 70,055 
Depreciation 297,858 297,858 

Total Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses 4,788,574 346,947 214,530 5,350,051 2,221,448 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,539,890 438,918 (212,566) 1,766,242 (465,170) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Interest 27,114 13,098 40,212 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 

Transfers in (Note 3) 195,573 195,573 

Net Transfers 195,573 

Change in Net Position 1,567,004 452,016 (16,993) 2,002,027 (465,170) 

BEGINNING NET POSITION, as adjusted (Note 7H) 12,728,347 2,404,442 15,131,917 1,679,911 

ENDING NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Governmental 
Activities-

Internal Service 
Sewer Solid Waste StonnDrain Totals Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers $6,779,400 $783,760 $13,964 $7,577,124 
Cash received from other funds $1,746,848 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (3,828,740) (277,864) (85,150) (4,191,754) 
Cash payment employees for services (836,174) (63,309) (124,387) (1,023,870) 
Cash payments to claimants (1,595,880) 
Insurance premiums and settlements 219,785 

Cash Flows from (used for) Operating Activities 2,114,486 442,587 {195,573} 2,361,500 370,753 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfers in 195,573 

Cash Flows from (used for) Noncapital Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAP IT AL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of capital assets (242,468) 

Cash Flows (used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities ~242,468} ~242,4682 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 40,212 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 27,114 13,098 40,212 

Net Cash Flows 1,899,132 455,685 2,354,817 370,753 

Cash and investments at beginning of period 5,475,341 2,359,830 7,835,171 5,023,868 

Cash and investments at end of period $7,374,473 $2,815,515 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Cash Flows 
from Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) $1,539,890 $438,918 ($212,566) $1,766,242 ($465,170) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash flows 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation 297,858 297,858 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
Receivables, net 450,936 (2,105) 12,000 460,831 (9,430) 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (193,893) 3,766 (190,127) (52,465) 
Due to retirement system (914) (914) 
Compensated absences 530 977 1,507 
OPEB liabilities 20,079 2,008 4,016 26,103 
Claims and judgments 897,818 

Cash Flows from (used for) Operating Activities $2,114,486 $442,587 ($195,573) $2,361,500 $370,753 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

AGENCY FUND 

Agency Fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of the results of 
operations. It is used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore cannot be used to 
support the City's programs. 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 2) 
Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 
AccOlmts receivable 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Due to others 

Total Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Agency 
Funds 

$2,026,494 
39,794 

$3,023,961 

$301,159 
2,722,802 

$3,023,961 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

I NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Background 

The basic fmancial statements of the City of Los Altos, California (the City), have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted aCCotUlting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting 
policies are described below: 

Reporting Entity 

The City incorporated in 1952. The City operates under an elected Council and appointed City Manager form 
of government and provides the following services: public safety, recreation, community development, public 
works, capital improvements, and general supporting administrative services. The City has no component 
units. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts which includes its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as 
appropriate. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid 
management in demonstrating compliance with fmance-related legal and contractual provisions. The 
minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with such provisions and managerial requirements. 

Government-wide Statements: The City's Government-wide Financial Statements include a Statement of 
Net Position and a Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present 
summaries of governmental activities and business-type activities for the City, the primary government, 
accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements. 

These basic financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital assets, as 
well as infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net 
Position. The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position presents changes in the net position of 
the City. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are 
earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability for goods or services is incurred. 

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the city in three categories: 

• Charges for services 
• Operating grants and contributions 
• Capital grants and contributions 

f':.:: 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

I NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to inter fund 
activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been 
eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. 
In the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position internal service fund transactions have been 
eliminated; however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been 
eliminated. The following inter-fund activities have been eliminated: 

• Due to, due from other funds 
• Transfers in, transfers out 
• Internal service fund transactions 

Fund Financial Statements: Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and 
non-major funds in the aggregate. An accompanying schedule is included to reconcile and explain the 
differences in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the 
Government-Wide financial statements. 

Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current fmancial resources" measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are 
included on the balance sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing 
uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the 
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to [mance expenditures of the 
current period. 

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days 
after year-end) are recognized when due. The City's primary revenue sources, which have been treated as 
susceptible to accrual by the City, are: property tax, sales tax, hotel tax, special assessments, 
intergovernmental revenues, other taxes, interest revenue, rental revenue and certain charges for services. 
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred and are 
accrued accordingly. 

Deferred inflow of resources arise when potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable" and 
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues arise when the government 
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring 
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the 
government has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue is recognized. 

The reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-wide Financial Statements is 
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach ofGASB Statement No. 34. 
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Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: Proprietary Fund financial statements include a Statement of Net 
Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows 
for all proprietary funds. 

A column representing the City's internal service funds, those funds that support agency wide shared 
service costs, is also presented in these statements. These internal service balances and activities are 
combined with the governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. 

Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on 
the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position 
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized 
in the period in which liability for goods or services is incurred. 

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses and non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise and internal service funds are 
charges for customer services, including sewer charges, solid waste fees, and support charges. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The City's Fiduciary Funds are comprised of agency funds used to 
account for the operating activities and for the special assessment collections pertaining to the North County 
Library Authority, Raymundo and Avalon Drive Curb and Gutter Districts, and Blue Oak Lane Sewer 
Improvements. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities), do not involve the 
measurement of results of operations, and are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Internal Service Funds: Internal Service Funds account for services provided to other departments 
pertaining to the employee self-insurance dental program, unemployment insurance, workers' compensation 
insurance and liability insurance, all of which are funded on a cost reimbursement basis as budget 
projections and valuations develop. 

C. Major Funds 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal 
to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is always a 
major fund. The City may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds. 
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The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

General Fund - Accounts for all fmancial resources necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of 
the City that are not accounted for in another funds. The General Fund supports essential City services such 
as police, fire, street and parks maintenance, public works, and community development and recreation 
activities. The General Fund also includes the Real Property Proceeds Funds, which accounts for the 
proceeds from sale of real property and the Community Facilities Renewal Fund, which accounts for the 
revenues and expenditures related to the community facilities renewal efforts. 

In-Lieu Park Land Fund - Accounts for revenues received in lieu of parkland dedications. The revenues are 
dedicated for purchasing or improving park or recreational facilities. 

Capital Project Fund - Accounts for the acquisition and construction of major general government capital 
projects and plans that are financed by resources other than proprietary funds. 

The City reported all of its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

Sewer Fund - Accounts for the operation (including waste water treatment) of the City's sewer treatment 
activities, a self·supporting activity which provides services on a user charge basis. 

Solid Waste Fund - Accounts for the administration and support of contracted solid waste services, a self­
supporting user charge for services activity. 

Storm Drain Fund - Accounts for operation of the City's urban runoff and storm drain activities. 

D. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements 

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statements, which became effective during the year ended June 30,2015. 

GASB Statement No. 68 - In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this 
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. 
This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defmed benefit pensions, this 
Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount 
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of 
employee service. This Statement had a material impact on the City's financial statements. See Note 7H 
below. 

GASB Statement No. 69 - In 2014, the GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and 
Disposals of Government Operation. This Statement requires disclosures to be made about government 
combinations and disposals of government operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the 
nature and financial effects of those transactions. This Statement did not have a material impact on the 
financial statements for the fiscal year 2015. 
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GASB Statement No. 71- In 2014, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transitionfor Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 68. The objective of 
this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with 
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity to 
a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension 
liability. This Statement had a material impact on the City's financial statements. See Note 7H below. 

E. Recognition of Interest Payable 

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, interest expenditures on long-term debt are recognized 
when payment is made. In the Government-wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial 
Statements interest expense is recognized as the liability is incurred. 

F. Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net position first. 

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The City pools its available cash for investment purposes. The City considers pooled cash and investment 
amounts, with original maturities of three months or less, to be cash equivalents. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments 
and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at 
time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is 
used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California known as the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset­
backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of 
California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-backed Securities 
are subject to market risk as to change in interest rates. 

The City places liquid assets in a pooled investment account with the goal of enhancing the diversity of its 
investment holdings. This portfolio complies with state code investment requirements and is subject to a more 
restrictive City adopted investment policy. Such funds are held independently in City established investment 
custodial accounts. 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the City considers each fund's share in the cash and investments pool to 
be cash and cash equivalents including cash with fiscal agents. 

H. Inventories 

Inventory, mainly consisting of vehicle fuel and paper supplies, is stated at cost on an average cost basis and is 
controlled by a perpetual inventory system which is adjusted to reflect periodic physical counts. Inventories 
are recorded as expenditures in the General Fund and charged to departments as consumed. 
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L Restricted Cash 

Fiscal agents acting on behalf of the City hold investment funds arising from the proceeds of long-term debt 
issuances. The funds may be used for specific capital outlays or for the payment of certain bonds, certificate of 
participation and have been invested only as permitted by specific State statutes or applicable City ordinance, 
resolution or bond indenture. 

J. Compensated Absences 

Government-wide Financial Statements: For governmental and business-type activities, compensated 
absences are recorded as expenses and liabilities as the time is earned by employees. 

Fund Financial Statements: For Governmental Funds, compensated absences are recorded as expenditures 
in the years paid. The General Fund is typically used to payout compensated absences that arise in the 
course of anyone year. Unpaid and accumulated liabilities for some compensated absences accrue to future 
resources. In Proprietary Funds, compensated absences are expensed to the various funds in the period they 
are earned, and such fund's share of the unpaid liability is recorded as a long-term liability of the fund. 

K Property Taxes 

Santa Clara County (County) assesses all properties in the City, and it bills, collects and distributes property 
taxes to the City. Both secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on January 1. The County assesses 
properties and it bills, collects and distributes property taxes to the City. The County remits the entire amount 
levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. Secured and unsecured property taxes are 
levied on July I for the fiscal year. 

Secured property tax is due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1, and it becomes delinquent 
after December 10 and April 10, respectively. The City and the County adopted the "alternative method of 
property tax distribution" known as the Teeter Plan that authorizes the County to allocate 100% of the secured 
property tax based on levy instead of collection and to retain all delinquent penalties and interest. Unsecured 
property tax is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent after August 31. Distribution of the unsecured property 
taxes is based on collections. Collection of delinquent accounts is the responsibility of the County, which 
retains all penalties. The County also distributes both penalties and interest collected for delinquent unsecured 
property taxes. 

L. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not 
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated. City 
policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000 for equipment, $25,000 for 
building and facility improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure. 

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Buildings 
Improvements 
Machinery and Equipment 
Infrastructure 

50 years 
30-50 years 
3-10 years 
30-100 years 
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In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has included all infrastructures in its Statement of Net 
Position. 

The City defines infrastructure as basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets include the 
street system. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For example, the street system 
can be subdivided into pavement, streetlights and traffic control devices (signs, signals and pavement 
markings). These subsystems were not delineated in the Government-wide Financial Statements. The 
appropriate operating department maintains information regarding the subsystems. 

For all infrastructure systems, the City has elected to use the Basic Approach, as defined by GASB Statement 
No. 34, for infrastructure reporting. The valuation of the City's infrastructure assets are detennined based on 
the original cost using one of the following methods: 

1. Use of historical records where available 
2. Standard unit costs appropriate for the construction/acquisition date of the asset 
3. Present replacement cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase from the 

construction/acquisition date to the current date 

Accumulated depreciation, defmed as the total depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the 
current date, was computed on a straight-line method. The book value was then computed by deducting the 
accumulated depreciation from the original cost. 

M. Long-Term Debt 

Government-wide Financial Statements: Long-term debt and other financial obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the appropriate activities. 

Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line 
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount. 

Fund Financial Statements: The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present long-term debt, 
which are shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Position. 

Governmental Funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the 
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 
debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other 
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported 
as debt service expenditures. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. 

N. Unearned Revenue 

Government-wide Financial Statements: In the Government-wide Financial Statements, unearned 
revenue is recognized for transactions for which revenue has not yet been earned. 
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O. Deferred OutjlowslInjlows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the 
statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. 

P. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported amount of 
expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions. 

I NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

A. Cash Deposits 

The City's cash and investments at June 30,2015 are presented as follows: 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Fiduciary funds: 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and investments consist of the following as of June 30,2015: 

Cash on hand 
Deposits with fmancial institutions 

Investments: 
Liquid investments 
Managed investments 

Total cash and investments 

$33,853,742 
3 

$69,562,090 
171,960 

2,026,494 
39,794 

$71,800,338 

$2,170 
6,510,988 

$71,800,338 



REVIEW DRAFT 47 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

I NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 
B. Authorized Investments 

C. 

Under the provisions of the City's investment policy and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California 
Government Code, the City is authorized to invest or deposit in the following, with the limitations as they 
relate to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk: 

Maximum Maximum 

Maximum Percentage Investment 
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio In One Issuer 

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A $50 million 

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10% 

Certificates of Deposit 3 years 50% 10% 

Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 20% 10% 

Commercial Paper 180 days 15% 5% 

Repurchase Agreements 180 days 20% 10% 

U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 5 years N/A N/A 
U.S. Government-Sponsored Enterprise 5 years N/A 20% 

Agencies 

Medium-Term Corporate Notes 3 years 15% 5% 

Risk Disclosures 

Interest Risk: Interest rate risk is the market rate changes that adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the sensitivity of an investment fair value to changes in market rates is greater when 
the maturity of the investment is longer. 

Investments held in City Treasury grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2015, are shown below: 

Money Market 
Government Sponsored Enterprise Agencies: 

Federal Horne Loan Bank: Bonds (FHLB) 
Federal Horne Loan Mortgage Corporate Notes (FHLMC) 
Federal National Mortgage Association Notes (FNMA) 
Federal Farm Credit Bank: (FFCB) 

U.S. Treasury Notes 
Corporate Notes 
Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) 

Total investments 

Demand Deposits and Cash on Hand 

Total cash and investments 

One Year 

$211,812 

1,199,918 
2,503,403 

751,040 
1,251,339 
1,452,578 
1,451,247 

33,641,930 

13 months to 25 months 

$2,776,839 
1,398,356 $1,004,657 

4,594,145 10,717,939 
1,382,572 949,405 

$211,812 

3,976,757 
4,906,416 

751,040 
1,251,339 

16,764,662 
3,783,224 

33,641,930 

65,287,180 

$71,800,338 
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Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. This is usually measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. 

At June 30,2015, the City's deposit and investments were rated as follows: 

Credit Quality Ratings 

Investment Type S&P Market Value 

Cash on hand Not Rated Not Rated $2,170 

US Bank General Checking Not Rated Not Rated 6,444,883 

Money Market (Sweep Account) Not Rated Not Rated 66,105 

Money Market Aaa AAAm 211,812 

Securities of Government Sponsored Enterprise Agencies: 

Federal Home Loan Bank Bonds (FHLB) Aaa AA+ 3,976,757 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporate Notes (FHLMC) Aaa AA+ 4,906,416 

Federal National Mortgage Association Notes (FNMA) Aaa AA+ 751,040 

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) Aaa AA+ 1,251,339 

U.S. Treasury Notes Aaa AA+ 16,764,662 

Corporate Notes: 

General Electric Corp. AA+ Al 650,951 

WalMart Stores, Inc. AA Aa2 800,296 

3M Corp Notes AA Aal 756,146 

Chevron Corp Notes AA Aal 449,811 

Exxon Mobil Corp Notes AAA Aaa 499,594 

US Bank Corp Note AA- Al 626,426 

Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) Not Rated Not Rated 

Total Investments $71,800,338 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits 
may not be returned to it. The City does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, 
the California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated 
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in 
the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California 
law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes 
having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105% of the secured deposits. 

As of June 30, 2015, the City'S bank balance was $6,545,154 and the corresponding carrying book balance 
was $6,444,883. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and 
$6,295,154 was collateralized. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments: The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event 
of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The 
California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. 
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Investment in State Investment Pool: The City is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value 
of the City's investment in this pool as reported in the accompanying financial statements is based upon the 
Entity's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAlF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio). 

As of June 30, 2015, the City held $33,641,930 in LAlF. The LAIF fair value factor of 1.000375979 was 
used to calculate the fair value of the investments in LAIF and average maturity of239 days. 

I NOTE 3 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS I 
A. Transfers 

Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows: 

Fund Making Transfer 
General Fund 

In·Lieu Park Land Special Revenue Fund 

Capital Projects Fund 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Fund Receiving Transfers 
Capital Projects Fund 
Storm Drain Fund 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Capital Projects Fund 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 

Interfund transfers were principally used for the following purposes: 

(A) To fund capital projects 

(B) To support the operations of the Storm Drain Fund 

(C) Maintain minimum fund balance in Debt Service 

(D) Public safety related funds paid to the General Fund 

(E) Gas tax to support street projects 

(F) To establish the PEG Special Revenue Fund 

Amount 
$106,937 (A) 

195,573 (B) 
168,779 (C) 

56,773 (A) 

440,262 (F) 

307,810 (D) (E) 
(A) 

$3,827,504 
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A. Government-wide Financial Statements 

At June 30, 2015, the City's capital assets consisted of the following: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Nondepreciable assets: 
Construction in progress $2,438,421 $273,663 
Land 10,622,285 

Total nondepreciable assets 13,060,706 273,663 

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings 21,637,868 17,453,176 
Improvements 5,079,055 
Machinery and equipment 4,701,492 819,475 
Infrastructure 30,092,243 

Total depreciable assets 61,510,658 20,241,872 

Less accumulated depreciation (23,927,644) (11,853,398) 

Total depreciable assets, net 37,583,014 8,388,474 

Total capital assets $50,643,720 $8,662,137 

Total 

$2,712,084 
10,622,285 
13,334,369 

39,091,044 
5,079,055 
5,520,967 

32,061,464 

81,752,530 

(35,781,042) 

45,971,488 

$59,305,857 

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2015: 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets, not depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in Progress 

Total capital assets, not depreciated 

Buildings 
Improvements 

Machinery and Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total cost of depreciable assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Machinery and Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net depreciable assets 

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net 

Balance 

$10,622,285 

12,772,512 

21,637,868 
5,079,055 

4,683,216 

29,781,213 

61,181,352 

(8,509,597) 

(1,623,387) 

(3,559,708) 

(8,431,698) 

(22,124,390) 

$51,829,474 

599,224 

81,162 

81,162 

(450,499) 

(138,453) 

(349,705) 

~927,483L 

{1,866,1402 

($62,886) 

Balance 

$10,622,285 

(311,030) ___ 13-,,-,0_6--,0,_70_6_ 

311,030 

21,637,868 

5,079,055 

4,701,492 

(62,886) ___ 3_1~1,_03_0 ____ 61...:,.,5_1_0,-,6_58_ 

62,886 

62,886 

(8,960,096) 

(1,761,840) 

(3,846,527) 

{9,359,181) 

(23,927,644) 

37,583,014 

($1,185,754) ===== ===== ==$5=0,=64=3=,7=20= 
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The governmental activities depreciation expenses for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as 
follows: 

Department 
Public safety 
Public works 
Community / cultural services 

Community development 
General government 

Total depreciation expense 

Total 
$266,805 

986,961 
512,108 

3,216 
97,050 

$1,866,140 

The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities: 

Business-Type Activities: 

Capital assets, not depreciated: 

Construction in Progress 

Total capital assets, not depreciated: 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total cost of depreciable assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net depreciable assets 

Business-type Activity Capital Assets, Net 

Balance 

June 2014 

$31,195 

31,195 

17,453,176 

819,475 

1,969,221 

(8,963,022) 

(623,297) 

(1,969,221) 

(11,555,540) 

$8,717,527 

Balance 

Additions June 2015 

$242,468 $273,663 

242,468 273,663 

17,453,176 

819,475 

1,969,221 

20,241,872 

(256,836) (9,219,858) 

(41,022) (664,319) 

(1,969,221) 

(297,858) (11,853,398) 

($55,390) ==$::::8,=66=2=,1=37= 

Depreciation expense for business-type activities related to the Sewer Fund amounted to $297,858 for the year 
ended June 30, 2015. 

B. Fund Financial Statements 

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present capital assets, which are shown in the 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

The capital assets of the Enterprise Funds in the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are the same as those 
shown in the business-type activities of the Government-wide Financial Statements. 
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I NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS I 
A. Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt 

Summary of changes in govel1lll1ental activities long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as 
follows: 

Certificate of 
participation 

Balance at 

June 30, 2014 

$1,665,000 

Retirements 

($100,000) 

Balance at 

June 2015 

$1,565,000 

Due Within 

One Year 

$105,000 

Due in More 

Than One Year 

$1,460,000 

2004 Refunding Certificate of Participation: On November 1, 1996, the City issued $2,630,000 principal 
amount of Certificates of Participation (ABAG 38 COPs). The purpose of the ABAG 38 COPs was to 
finance the partial purchase of the 5.5 acre Saint William School site for public purposes and uses. During 
2004 the City issued $2,500,000 of 2004 Refunding Certificates of Participation to advance refund 
$2,390,000 of outstanding principal on the ABAG 38 Certificates of Participation, set up reserve funds, and 
to pay related issuance costs. The entire ABAG 38 Certificates of Participation had been paid off by 
June 30, 2004. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total future debt service payments. 

At June 30, 2015, future debt service requirements for the 2004 Refunding were as follows: 

Year ending June 30 PrinciEal Interest Total 

2016 $105,000 $63,568 $168,568 

2017 105,000 59,892 164,892 

2018 110,000 56,060 166,060 

2019 120,000 51,880 171,880 

2020 120,000 47,200 167,200 

2021 - 2025 685,000 157,575 842,575 

2026 - 2027 320,000 20,612 340,612 

Total $1,565,000 $456,787 $2,021,787 
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I NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) I 
B. Non-City Obligations 

The following bonds are not reported in the City's financial statements as they are special obligations 
payable solely from and secured by specific revenue sources as described in the resolutions and official 
statements of the respective issues. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged 
for payment of these obligations. 

Balance Balance Due Within Due in More 

June 2014 Retirements June 30, 2015 One Year Than One Year 

Ra)1l1undo Curb and Gutter $152,000 ($19,000) $133,000 $20,000 $113,000 

Avalon Drive Curb and Gutter 18,000 (18,000) 

Blue Oak Lane 590,000 (15,000) 575,000 15,000 560,000 

Total $760,000 ($52,000) $708,000 $35,000 $673,000 

Raymundo and Avalon Special Assessment Districts: The Raymundo Curb and Gutter Assessment 
District Improvement Bonds were issued on August 3, 2005 to provide financing for the street 
improvements in that District. The Avalon Drive Curb and Gutter Assessment District Improvement Bonds 
were issued for a similar purpose in 2000. The bonds are payable from a special property tax levied to 
those residents living within the respective District. Avalon Drive Curb and Gutter Assessment District 
Improvement Bonds were paid off as of June 30, 2015. 

Blue Oak Lane Special Assessment District: On November 5, 2009, Limited Obligation Improvement 
Bonds were issued for a newly formed Blue Oak Lane Sewer Assessment District (series 2009) to finance 
the acquisition and construction, by the City, of sanitary sewer improvements serving properties within the 
subject assessment District. These bonds are issued upon and secured by individual parcel levied 
assessments to be included in the annual property tax billings annually. The Bonds mature in 2039, were 
issued in a principal amount of $662,880 and are subject to semi~annual debt service payments administered 
by the City. 

I NOTE 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE I 

The City's compensated absences at June 30, 2015, were as follows: 

Balance at July 1,2014 
Additions 
Payments 

Balance at June 30, 2015 

Current Portion 

Long Term Portion 

Governmental 
Activities 

$1,547,238 
974,912 

(975,557) 

$1,546,593 

$1,159,945 

Business-type 
Activities 

$46,618 
51,300 

(50,770) 

$47,148 

$11,787 

$35,361 

Total 

$1,593,856 
1,026,212 

(1,026,327) 

$1,593,741 

$1,195,306 
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A. Fund Balances 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications: non-spendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. The City Council, as the highest level of decision making 
authority for the City, can commit fund balances through the adoption of a formal action in accordance with 
the adoption of its annual Financial Policy. This fonnal action includes committing funds through budget 
adoption or by resolution. This policy authorizes the City Manager to assign fund balances and has set the 
budgetary level of control at the Fund and Capital Project level for the governing body and the department 
level for the City Manager and assignees. 

B. Emergency and Operating Reserve 

The City Council has established an Emergency and Operating (Emergency) Reserve goal level of 20% of 
annual operating expenditures has set funds aside accordingly through its annual budgetary actions. These 
funds would be available for use in such conditions to mitigate negative economic fiscal impacts or State 
takeaways and can be activated within anyone budget cycle through Council action. An economic 
downturn would entail a projected and/or sudden drop in core revenues (major tax and service revenue loss) 
of equal to or greater than 5% (including the impact of inflation) and/or a change in economic parameters 
(such as interest rates, debt service rates, commodity prices, pension rates) that cause a material change in 
expenditures of 5% or more, or the occurrence of a local natural disaster or unexpected financial claim 
requiring the immediate use of cash balances of 5% or more, or the occurrence of a local natural disaster or 
unexpected fmancial claim requiring the immediate use of cash balances. In fiscal year 2014115, in line with 
budget approval, the City reallocated the pre-established State Budget Stabilization reserve into the 
aforementioned Emergency reserve. This results in the establishment of one Reserve balance to assist in 
periods of economic downturn or extraordinary need. The City achieved its reserve goal of 20% during 
fiscal year 2014115. 

c. Classifications 

In the Government-wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of the assets. 

Restricted Net Position This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments. 

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the defmition of "net 
investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position." 

As prescribed by GASB Statement No. 54, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications based 
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in the funds can be spent. As of June 30,2015, fund balances for government funds are made up of 
the following; 
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• Non-spendable Fund Balance - includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes items that 
are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term notes 
receivable and land. 

• Restricted Fund Balance - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 
by external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may 
effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers. 

• Committed Fund Balance - includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making authority, the City 
Council. Commitments may be modified only by the City taking the same formal action that imposed 
the constraint originally. 

• Assigned Fund Balance - comprised of amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes 
that are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by (a) the City Council or (b) a body (for 
example: a budget or finance committee) or official to which the City Council has delegated the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 

• Unassigned Fund Balance - conveys the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all 
amounts not contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any 
purpose. 

D. Policies 

Order oiUse 

The standard also requires governments to disclose the accounting policies that indicate the order in which 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned amounts are spent. The City considers restricted amounts to 
have been spent first when expenditures are incurred and both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are 
available. Additionally, the City considers committed amounts to have been spent first, assigned amounts to 
have been spent second, and unassigned amounts to have been spent last when an expenditure is incurred 
for purposes of which committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance is available. In circumstances 
when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance 
classifications, fund balance is generally depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned. 

Assignment and Commitment Authority 

The City Council has approved by resolution a financial policy authorizing the City Manager to assign fund 
balances to facilitate year-end reporting requirements. The City Council, as the highest level of decision 
making authority for the City, has the ability to commit fund balances through the adoption by resolution. 
The same action must be taken to modify or rescind the commitment. 
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E. Fund Balances 

F. 

Fund balances for all the major and non-major governmental funds as of June 30, 2015 were distributed as 
follows: 

In Lieu Capital Nonma.jor 
Fund Balance Classifications General ParkLand Projects Funds Total 

Nonspendables: 
Inventory and prepaids $21,861 $21,861 
Encumbrances 410,774 410,774 
Veteran memorial 12,000 12,000 

Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 444,635 

Restricted for: 
Debt service $364,179 364,179 
Special revenue programs and projects $5,907,033 4,343,025 10,250,058 

Total Restricted Fund Balances 5,907,033 4,707,204 10,614,237 

Assigned to: 
Emergency and operating 6,705,000 6,705,000 
OPEB 2,000,000 2,000,000 
PERS reserve 600,000 600,000 
Technology reserve 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Capital projects 2,487,428 25,961,289 

Total Assigned Fund Balances 29,565,241 2,487,428 36,766,289 

Unassigned 4,789,162 4,789,162 

Total Unassigned Fund Balances 4,789,162 4,789,162 

Total Fund Balances 

OPEB Reserves 

A review of the City's fund balance assignments will reveal that as of June 30, 2015, $2 million in General 
Fund reserves have been assigned in recognition of existing Post-Retirement Health Actuarial Obligations 
noted above. 
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G. Capital Projects Reserves 

As of June 30,2015 the City had set-aside $17,510,240 for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
projects and plans that are financed by resources other than proprietary funds. This amount includes 
$10,344,647 from the City's Real Property Proceeds Fund and $7,165,593 in the City's Community 
Facilities Renewal Fund, which are presented with the General Fund in the financial statements. While 
these funds are not restricted by outside funding sources, the fund balance is assigned for future capital 
projects to be detennined by the City Council. 

Be2innin2 Fund Balance as of July 1, 2014 
Revenues 

Interest Income 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2015 

Real Property 
Proceeds Funds 

$10,140,295 

50,287 

$10,344,647 

Community 
Facilities 
Renewal 

Fund 

$7,165,593 

$7,165,593 

H. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 68 and 71 Restatement 

As discussed in Note ID, in fiscal year 2015, the City implemented the provisions ofGASB Statements No. 
68 and 71. Accordingly, beginning net positions of the governmental activities was reduced by 
$22,220,446. In addition, the beginning net positions of the business-type activities and the Sewer 
Enterprise Fund were both reduced by $1,672,506. The reductions reflect the recording of inflows of 
resources and deferred outflows of resources as required under the new GASBs. 

I NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT I 
A. Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and floods for which the City is insured through Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority (Bay City). 

The City has joined Bay City for general liability, property, errors and omissions, crimes and automobile 
physical damage coverage in the current year. Bay City is a public agency created in 1986 by and among 
various municipalities in Northern California to provide a pooled approach to liability insurance pursuant to 
the California Government Code. It is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of appointed officials 
from the member entities. The purpose of the pool is to provide various levels of liability coverage, claims 
administration, and loss control support to member agencies. Annually, each member pays an actuarially 
detennined premium based on a fonnula which takes into account the prior three years' loss experience, 
annual payroll, and popUlation. 



REVIEW DRAFT 58 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

I NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) I 
Bay City provides coverage for its Members in excess of the member's retained limit, or self-insured 
retention (SIR), up to $1,000,000 per occurrence. Each Member retains the portion of every loss that falls 
within their SIR, ranging from $2,500 to $1,000,000. Bay City is also a member of the California Affiliated 
Risk Management Authorities (CARMA), a risk sharing joint powers authority. When losses exceed the 
$1,000,000 per occurrence limit, CARMA provides coverage up to $28,000,000. 

The City self-insures the fITst $100,000 of each liability loss. Once the City's deductible is met, Bay Cities 
becomes responsible for payment of all claims up to the upper limit. During the year ended June 30, 2015, 
the City contributed $318,915 or current year coverage. 

The City continues to carry excess insurance policy for Workers' Compensation claims through the CSAC 
Excess Insurance Authority JP A up to the statutory limits and does so using the services of a contracted 
third-party administrator. The City has a $250,000 deductible as of June 30, 2015. During the year, the City 
contributed $143,330 for current year coverage. 

As of June 30, 2015, $50,000 of revolving funds was held in trust on behalf of the City by the workers' 
compensation third-party claims administrator. $55,000 is also being held by Bay Cities in the procurement 
of liability and claims coverage. The City will receive these funds upon termination of services subject to 
final withdrawal adjustments. 

The Bay City financial statements may be obtained from Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority, 
Bickmore, 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833. CSAC Excess Insurance 
Authority financial statements may be obtained from CSAC Excess Insurance Authority, 75 Iron Point 
Circle Suite 200, Folsom, CA 95630. 

B. Liability for Uninsured Claims 

The GASB requires municipalities to record their liability for uninsured claims and to reflect the current 
portion of this liability as an expenditure in their financial statements. As discussed in the section above, the 
City has coverage for such claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible or uninsured portion, of 
these claims. GASB Statement No. 10, "Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance 
Issues," requires that this amount be separately identified and recorded as a liability. Changes in the 
balances of claims liabilities during the past three years were as follows: 

2015 2014 

Unpaid claims, beginning of year $3,248,182 $3,277,504 $2,638,744 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 1,407,886 666,678 1,047,139 

Claim payments (510,068) (696,0002 

Unpaid claims, end of year $4,146,000 $3,248,182 $3,277,504 

Current Portion $669,896 

Long Tenn Portion $3,523,032 $2,590,744 $2,607,608 

In conformance with GASB Statement No. 10, the City obtained an independent actuarial valuation of all 
outstanding Workers Compensation and Liability claims. The report presented a valuation as of June 30, 
2015 and projected values through fiscal years 2015 and 2016. The fiscal year 2014/15 values presented 
above reflect the estimated present value of open claims as developed in this actuarial report. The estimated 
amount of claims andjudgments due within one year is $622,968. 
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I NOTE 9 - SELF-FUNDED REIMBURSEMENT DENTAL PLAN I 
The City provides a self-funded reimbursement based dental plan. The City's contribution for this plan is 
accounted for in the Dental Reimbursement Fund. The City contributed $75 per month for each fulltime 
budgeted position. The funds accumulated are used to reimburse full-time salaried employees and their 
dependents, as well as council members for covered dental claims. There are no administrative charges for 
this plan. The Dental Reimbursement Fund maintains a positive fund balance of $143,706 with 
contributions and reimbursements for the past five fiscal years as follows: 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Total 

Contribution 
Amount 

$90,506 
112,254 
114,264 
110,284 
123,225 

Reimbursement 
Amount 

$106,000 
109,632 
104,711 
119,137 
128,498 

$567,978 

The dental plan year commences January 1 st of each calendar year. An annual maximum dental 
reimbursement of $1,500 is provided for each employee and $1,000 for each of their dependents. Any 
remaining balance in the fund for each dental year is carried forward to the following year. In subsequent 
dental years, the maximum dental coverage for both employees and dependents is increased annually 
based on the Consumer Price Index but not to exceed 3%. 

I NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
City's separate Safety and Miscellaneous cost-sharing multiple employer defmed benefit pension plans 
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). Benefit provisions 
under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available 
reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. 
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members 
are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the 
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death 
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' 
Retirement Law. 
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The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows: 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Miscellaneous - Tier 1 

Prior to January 1,2012 

2.7%@55 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

50 

2.00% - 2.7% 

8.00% 

16.691% 

Miscellaneous - Tier 2 
January 1,2012 -

December 31, 2012 

2%@60 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

58 

1.092% - 1.65% 

7.00% 

8.005% 

Miscellaneous - Tier 3 

On or after January 1, 2013 

2%@62 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

52 

1.00% - 2.00% 

6.25% 

6.25% 
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Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Safety - Tier I 

Prior t January 1,2012 

3%@50 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

50 

3.00% 

9.00% 

28.286% 

Safety- Tier 2 
January 1,2012 -

December 31, 2012 

3%@55 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

50 

2.4-3.0% 

9.00% 

21.367% 

Tier 3 
On or after January 1,2013 

2.7%@57 

5 years service 

monthly for life 

50 

2.00% - 2.7% 

11.50% 

11.50% 

Contributions - Section 20814( c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both 
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required 
to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan 
were as follows: 

Contributions - employer 

Miscellaneous 
Tier 1 

$1,399,758 

Miscellaneous 
Tier 2 

$3,161 

Miscellaneous 
Tier 3 

$3 

Safety 
Tier 1 

$1,269,272 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred OutflowslInflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

As of June 30, 2015, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension 
liability of each Plan as follows: 

Miscellaneous- Tier 1 

Miscellaneous- Tier 2 
Miscellaneous- Tier 3 

Safety- Tier 1 

Total Net Pension Liability 

Proportionate Share 
of Net Pension Liability 

$10,580,488 

23,895 

25 

$19,616,380 

The City's net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total 
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. The 
City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially detennined. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 
30,2013 and 2014 was as follows: 

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Safety 
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 

Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.44% 0.00010% 0.00% 0.25% 

Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.43% 0.00097% 0.00% 0.24% 

Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.01% 0.00087% 0.00% -0.01% 
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $12, 134. At June 30, 2015, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 

on plan investments 

Adjustments due to differences in proportion 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

$1,993,833 

64,457 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 

($6,282,255) 

(39,559) 

($6,321,814) 

$1,993,833 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 

June 30 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Increase 
(Decrease) In 

Pension Expense 

($1,561,672) 

(1,561,671) 

(1,563,449) 

(1,570,565) 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 

Measurement Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 

Inflation 

Payroll Growth 

Proj ected Salary Increase 

Investment Rate of Return 

Mortality 

Miscellaneous & Safety 

June 30, 2013 

June 30, 2014 
Entry-Age Normal Cost 

Method 

7.5% 

2.75% 

3.0% 

(1) 

(2) 
Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data 

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment 

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation 
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The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website. 

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for each Plan. 
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each 
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different 
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. 
Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate 
calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent will be applied to all 
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed 
report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in 
this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 
15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. 
Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension 
Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it 
to be a material difference. 

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to 
the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS 
expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations 
through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference 
in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long­
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
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I NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) I 
The table below reflects the long-tenn expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to detennine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

New 
Strategic Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 ~ 10 (a) 

Global Equity 47.0% 

Global Fixed Income 19.0% 

Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 

Private Equity 12.0% 

Real Estate 11.0% 

Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 

Liquidity 2.0% 

Total 100% 

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period. 

(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period. 

5.25% 

0.99% 

0.45% 

6.83% 

4.50% 

4.50% 

-0.55% 

Real Return 
Years 11 + (b) 

5.71% 

2.43% 

3.36% 

6.95% 

5.13% 

5.09% 

-1.05% 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan, calculated 
using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Safety 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 

1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 

Net Pension Liability $18,851,158 $42,574 $45 $15,524,303 

Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 

Net Pension Liability $10,580,488 $23,895 $25 $9,011,972 

1 % Increase 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 

Net Pension Liability $3,716,617 $8,394 $9 $3,646,092 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position Detailed infonnation about each pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 
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I NOTE 11- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) I 
A. Plan Description 

The City Retiree Healthcare Plan (Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered 
by the City. The Plan provides healthcare benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents through the 
CalPERS healthcare program (PEMHCA). Benefit provisions are established and may be amended through 
agreements and memorandums of understanding between the City, its non-represented employees and the 
unions representing City employees. The Plan does not issue financial reports. 

The City provides a retiree medical contribution using the "5% unequal method," where the retiree 
contribution is increased annually until it equals the PEMHCA minimum contribution. In fiscal 2014/15, 
the City's contribution averaged $112 per month. The City does not provide contributions for retiree dental, 
vision or life insurance benefits. 

B. City's Funding Policy 

The City continues to pay for retiree healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you go basis. This reporting year the City 
contributed $42,417 for current benefit payments. Retired plan members and their beneficiaries pay the annual 
premium cost not paid by the employer. 

As of June 30, 2015, $2 million has been set aside in the General Fund as a reserve with future budgets projected 
to make increased annual contributions thereafter. 

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The City's annual other post-employment benefit cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required 
contribution (ARC) of the employer. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually 
contributed to the Plan, and changes in the City's Net OPEB obligation: 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions made 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation at June 30,2014 

Net OPEB Obligation at June 30,2015 

$560,000 
48,000 

(97,000) 

511,000 
(109,417) 

401,583 

1,204,602 

$1,606,185 
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I NOTE 11- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) I 
The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2014/15 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
June 30. 2013 
June 30, 2014 
June 30, 2015 

AnnualOPEB 
Cost 
$234,000 

248,000 
511,000 

D. Funding Status and Funding Progress 

Actual 
Contributions 

$33,511 
37,344 

109,417 

Percentage of 
OPEB Cost 
Contributed 

14% 
15% 
21% 

NetOPEB 
Obligation 

(Asset) 
$993,946 
1,204,602 
1,606,185 

The funded status of the Plan as of June 30, 2014, the Plan's most recent actuarial valuation date, was as follows 
(in thousands): 

Unfunded 
Unfunded ( Overfunded) 

Entry Age (Overfunded) Actuarial 
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of 
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payrol 

Date (A) (B) (A-B) (AlB) [(A - B)/C] 
6/30/2014 $0 $4,394 $4,394 0.00% $10,874 40.41% 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of expected benefit payments and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions 
about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to 
the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
participants to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed 
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

For the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), a 3% 
general inflation rate, a 3.25% projected salary increases, and a medical trend of declining annual increases 
from 7.5% starting 2016 to 5.0% for years 2021 and after for non-Medicare and 7.8 % starting 2016 to 5.0% 
for years 2021 and after for Medicare. The PEMHCA minimum was assumed to annually increase by 4.50/0. 
The VAAL is amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls over 30 years on a closed basis 
commencing January 2009. 



REVIEW DRAFT 68 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

I NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES 

The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of 
conducting City business. City management believes, based upon consultation with the City Attorney, that 
these cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to result in a material adverse fmancial impact on the City. 
Additionally, City management believes that the City's insurance programs are reasonably sufficient to cover 
any potential losses should an unfavorable outcome materialize. 

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to the audits by 
the City's independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act as 
amended and applicable State requirements. In addition, these programs are subject to further examination by 
the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot 
be determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

I NOTE 13 - OTHER INFORMATION I 

A. Joint Powers Agreements 

The City participates in joint ventures through Joint Powers Authorities (JPAs) established under the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. As separate legal entities, these JP As exercise full powers 
and authorities within the scope of the related Joint Powers Agreement, including the preparation of annual 
budgets, accountability for all funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the right to sue and be 
sued. Obligations and liabilities of the JPAs are not those of the City. 

Each JPA is governed by a board consisting of representatives from each member agency. Each board 
controls the operations of its respective JP A, including selection of management and approval of operating 
budgets, independent of any influence of member agencies beyond their representation of the board. 

City of Palo Alto Regional Water Quality Control Plant: The City has an agreement with the City of 
Palo Alto to purchase treatment capacity at the Palo Alto Regional Water Quality Control Plant. It was 
formed in 1968 by a joint exercise of powers among the cities of Palo Alto, Mountain View, and Los 
Altos, constructed, maintains and operates sewage treatment facilities serving its member cities. The 
agreement provides that the City will purchase capacity for 50 years. The City of Palo Alto acts as 
administrator and bills each member its share of the operating costs. The audited financial statements 
can be obtained by contacting the City of Palo Alto at P.O. Box 10250, Palo Alto, CA 94303. 
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I NOTE 13 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

North County Library Authority (NCLA): The NCLA, formed in 1985 by a joint exercise of powers 
agreement between the City and the Town of Los Altos Hills, provides library services for member 
residents. The NCLA was created to provide financing for capital improvements and additional services 
by the public libraries serving the area. Although the City owns the libraries and their sites, the County 
of Santa Clara (County) is responsible for all library operations. However, since 1985, the NCLA has 
levied a voter approved special parcel tax to compensate for service reductions due to cutbacks by the 
County. The special tax has been collected by the County, transferred to the City, on behalf of NCLA, 
and then transferred back to the County for the specifically requested services provided by the libraries 
within the NCLA's service area. The City performs administrative and accounting services for NCLA. 
In 1991, the NCLA issued Special Tax Bonds in the amount of $3,645,000. The Special Tax Bonds 
were repaid off as of June 30, 2012. In 2010, NCLA successfully passed an updated twenty year parcel 
tax extending the assessment term to 2030. No new debt was issued in association with this election. 
The audited financial statements can be obtained by contacting the NCLA at One North San Antonio 
Road, Los Altos, CA 94022. 

Community Health Awareness Council (CHAC): CHAC was organized as a joint powers agency 
between the City of Los Altos, City of Mountain View, Town of Los Altos Hills, Los Altos School 
District, Mountain View Whisman School District, and Mountain View-Los Altos High School District. 
CHAC provides prevention and intervention services concentrating on positive alternatives to health 
abuse and self-destructive behaviors within the communities served. The audited financial statements 
can be obtained by contacting CHAC at P.O. Box 335, Mountain View, California, 94042. 

I NOTE 14 - OTHER COMMITMENTS I 
A summary of remaining authorized CIP project balances at June 30, 2015 for all City funds by service 
area are as follows: 

Construction in progress: 
Streets & Roadways 
Pedestrian Safety 
Infrastructure & Facilities 
Parks 
Sewer 
Technology 
Community Development 

Total 

$4,883,125 
3,169,413 

802,492 
1,143,425 
2,902,029 

948,646 
245,963 

$14,095,093 
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COST-SHARING EMPLOYER DEFINED PENSION PLAN: 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

This schedule reports the proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the proportionate 
share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the employer's covered employee payroll, the 
proportionate share {amount of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer's 
covered employee payroll and the pension plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability. 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

This schedule reports the cost sharing employer's contributions to the plan which are actuarially 
determined, the employer's actual contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially 
determined contributions, and a ratio of the actual contributions divided by covered employee payrolL 
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Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defmed Pension Plan 
Last 10 Years* 

Schedule of the Plan's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability and Related Ratio as of the Measurement Date 

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) 

Plan's proportion share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

Plan's Covered Employee Payroll 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its 
Covered-Employee Payroll 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary 
Net Position as a Percentage of the Plan's 
Total Pension Liability 

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate 
Employer Contributions 

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) 

Plan's proportion share of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

Plan's Covered Employee Payroll 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its 
Covered-Employee Payroll 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net 
Position as a Percentage of the Plan's Total 
Pension Liability 

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate 
Employer Contributions 

Tier I 
6/30/2014 

0.17004% 

$10,580,488 

6,784,293 

155.96% 

83.03% 

1,399,759 

Safety Plan 
Tier I 

6/30/2014 

0.14483% 

$9,011,972 

3,607,754 

249.79% 

81.46% 

1,269,272 

Miscellaneous Plans 
Tier II 

6/30/2014 

0.00038% 

$23,895 

798,893 

2.99% 

83.03% 

3,161 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1 st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown. 

Tier III 
6/30/2014 

0.00000% 

$25 

152,994 

0.02% 

83.11% 

3 
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Cost~Sharing Multiple-Employer Defmed Pension Plan 
Last 10 Years* 

Actuaria11y determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered-employee payroll 
Contributions as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 

Notes to Schedule 
Valuation date: 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuaria11y 

determined contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered-employee payroll 
Contributions as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 

Notes to Schedule 
Valuation date: 

Schedule of Contributions 

Tier I 
Fiscal Year 2015 

$994,964 

(994,964) 

$6,784,293 

14.67% 

6/30/2013 

Safety Plan 
Tier I 

Fiscal Year 2015 
$924,466 

(1,076,741) 

($152,275) 

$3,607,754 

29.85% 

6/30/2013 

Miscellaneous Plan 
Tier II 

Fiscal Year 2015 
$68,424 

$798,893 

8.56% 

6/30/2013 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 
Mortality 
Post Retirement Benefit Increase 

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment 

Entry age 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
15 years 
5-year smoothed market 
2.75% 
(1) 
7.50% (2) 
Derived using CalPERS Membership Data 
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power 
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 
2.75% thereafter 

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown. 

Tier III 
Fiscal Year 2015 

$18,423 

$0 

$152,994 

12.04% 

6/30/2013 
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In Thousands 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
6130/2009 
6/30/2011 
6/30/2014 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Schedule of Funding Progress Other Post-Employment Benefits 
As of the fiscal year ending June 30,2015 

Last Three Actuarial Valuations 

Unfunded 
Entry Age (Overfunded) 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial 
Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered 
Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll 

{A} {B} {A-B} {AlB} {C} 
$0 $1,662 $1,662 0.00% $10,884 

0 2,136 2,136 0.00% 10,369 
0 4,394 4,394 0.00% 10,874 

Unfunded 
(Overfunded) 

Actuarial 
Liability as 

Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 

[{A - B}/C] 
15.27% 
20.60% 
40.41 % 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property tax $15,746,700 $15,746,700 $17,479,882 $1,733,182 
Sales tax 2,825,700 2,825,700 2,942,764 117,064 
Utility users 2,756,700 2,756,700 2,522,536 (234,164) 
Other tax 3,143,000 3,143,000 3,744,657 601,657 
Licenses, pennits and fees 3,462,000 3,462,000 3,633,722 171,722 
Grants and donations 2,286 2,286 
Charges for services 4,011,400 4,011,400 4,611,203 599,803 
Fines and forfeitures 231,800 231,800 143,566 (88,234) 
Interest and rentals 452,800 452,800 228,562 (224,238) 
Other 199,300 199,300 800,547 

Total revenues 32,829,400 32,829,400 36,109,725 3,280,325 

Expenditures: 
General government: 

Public Safety 15,999,434 15,940,502 15,127,728 812,774 
Public Works 5,918,990 4,853,694 4,306,760 546,934 
Recreation 2,256,520 2,268,520 2,388,777 (120,257) 
Community development 3,038,570 4,149,190 4,182,000 (32,810) 
Admin/community services 4,974,420 4,604,519 3,770,298 

Total expenditures 32,187,934 31,816,425 29,775,563 2,040,862 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 641,466 1,012,975 5,321,187 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 316,900 316,900 307,810 (9,090) 
Transfers out 1,988,484 1,988,484 {471,2892 {2,459,773} 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,305,384 2,305,384 {163,4792 {2,468,8632 

Net change in fund balance $2,946,850 $3,318,359 6,170,683 

Fund balance at beginning of year 28,628,355 

Fund balance at end of year $34,799,038 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
IN-LIEU PARKLAND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Interest and rentals 
Intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$5,000 
360,000 

365,000 

$365,000 

$5,000 
360,000 

365,000 

$365,000 

$29,134 
62,708 

35,069 

5,871,964 

$24,134 

(273,158) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

1. Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The City adopts a budget annually for General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, except for the Stonn Drain 
Deposits Fund, Equipment Replacement Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund that is effective July 
1 for the ensuing fiscal year. From the effective date of the budget, which is adopted and controlled at the 
fund level, the amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various City 
departments. The City Council may amend the budget during the fiscal year. The City Manager is 
authorized to transfer budgeted amount between departments and line items within any fund to achieve a 
balanced budget; however, any revisions which alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by 
the City Council. Transfers between funds must be approved by the City Council. All appropriations lapse 
at year-end unless otherwise authorized by the City Council and the City Manager, except for capital 
improvement projects and open purchase order commitments for which appropriations endure until the 
project or obligation is completed. 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except for capital 
projects funds, which are adopted on a project length basis, which means budgets are used until the 
project's completion for the entire project amount. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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GENERAL FUND 

General Fund Accounts for all fmancial resources necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the 
City that are not accounted for in other funds. The General Fund supports essential City services such as police, 
fire, street and parks maintenance, maintenance services, community development and recreation activities. The 
General Fund also includes the Real Property Proceeds Funds, which accounts for the proceeds from the sale of 
real property and the Community Facilities Renewal Fund, which accounts for the revenues and expenditures 
related to the community facilities renewal efforts. 



REVIEW DRAFT 84 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles: 

Accounts 
Interest 

Prepaids 
Inventory 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Other payable 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Fund balance: 
Nonspendable 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GENERAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2015 

Community 
Facilities Renewal 

General Fund 

$17,236,184 $8,415,593 

1,085,656 
37,454 
13,613 

$18,381,155 $8,415,593 

$1,714,630 
431,396 
196,332 

2,342,358 

444,635 
10,805,000 $8,415,593 

4,789,162 

16,038,797 8,415,593 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Total 
Real Property General 

Proceeds Fund 

$10,336,471 $35,988,248 

1,085,656 

8,177 45,631 
13,613 

$10,344,648 $37,141,396 

$1,714,630 
431,396 
196,332 

2,342,358 

444,635 
$10,344,648 29,565,241 

4,789,162 

10,344,648 34,799,038 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Community Total 
Facilities Renewal Real Property General 

General Fund Proceeds Fund 

REVENUES 
Property tax $17,479,882 $17,479,882 

Sales tax 2,942,764 2,942,764 

Utility users 2,522,536 2,522,536 

Other tax 3,744,657 3,744,657 
Licenses, pennits and fees 3,633,722 3,633,722 
Grants and donations 2,286 2,286 
Charges for services 4,611,203 4,611,203 
Fines and forfeitures 143,566 143,566 
Interest and rentals 178,275 $50,287 228,562 
Other 646,482 154,065 800,547 

Total Revenues 35,905,373 204,352 36,109,725 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Public safety 15,127,728 15,127,728 
Public works 4,306,760 4,306,760 
Recreation 2,388,776 2,388,776 
Cornmunity development 4,182,000 4,182,000 
Admin / community development 3,770,298 3,770,298 

Total Expenditures 29,775,562 29,775,562 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 6,129,811 204,352 6,334,163 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (Note 3) 307,810 307,810 
Transfers (out) (Note 3) (471,289) (471,289) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (163,479) (163,479) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5,966,332 204,352 6,170,684 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 28,628,354 

ENDING FUND BALANCES $17,288,798 $7,165,593 $10,344,647 $34,799,038 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERN:MENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

VEIDCLE IMPOUND FUND 

To account for revenues collected from arrest and towing fees that are dedicated for public safety purposes. 

SUPPLE:MENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 

To account for revenues from the Citizen's Option for Public Safety Program in support of additional front­
line law enforcement services. 

GAS TAX FUNDS 

To account for the revenues received from the State gas taxes under the provision of the Streets and Highways 
Codes. These revenues are restricted to uses related to construction and improvements, an maintenance and 
repair of local streets. 

PROPOSITION IB FUND 

To account for the allocated bond fund amount from the State under the Proposition IB provisions. 

STORM DRAIN DEPOSITS FUND 

To account for fees collected from new subdivision development. All funds are restricted to construction and 
improvement of the storm drain system. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 

To account for grant funds received from the federal government specifically for the housing rehabilitation 
loan programs, the human services programs through local nonprofit agencies, and the accessibility 
improvements in compliance with the American with Disabilities Act. 

DOWNTOWNP~G~ 

To account for revenues received from the lease of the public parking plazas and in-lieu program fees. The 
revenues are dedicated for the construction and improvement of downtown parking facilities. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 

To account for revenues received from development. The revenues are dedicated for transportation 
improvements within the city. 

ESTATE DONATION FUND 

To account for donations received that are dedicated for purposes specified by the donors. 

TDAFUND 

To account for State Transportation Development Act, Article 3 funds for bike route and pedestrian 
facilities improvements. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued) 

PEG FUND 

To account for fees collected by local Cable Television franchise. All funds are restricted for public education 
and government access programming. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

To account for the revenues and expenditures related to the replacement of certain City equipment and 
vehicles. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

GENERAL DEBT SERVICE 

To account for the accumulation of revenues for periodic payment of principal and interest on Certificates of 
Participation and related authorized costs. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Receivables, net of allowance 

for uncollectibles: 
Accounts 
Interest 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted: 
Debt service 
Capital projects 
Special revenue programs and projects 

Assigned 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2015 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Supplemental 
Vehicle Law Proposition 
ImEound Enforcement Gas tax IB 

$31,230 $1,012,409 $40,378 

25,832 
1,757 32 

$57,062 $1,014,166 $40,410 

57,062 1,014,166 40,410 

$1,014,166 

Storm 
Drain 

DeEosits 

$56,086 

$56,086 

56,086 
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Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

$88,501 

$88,501 

$9,233 

9,233 

79,268 

79,268 

$88,501 

Downtown Traffic 

$598,334 $1,937,224 

552 1,786 

$598,886 $1,939,010 

$464 

464 

598,422 $1,939,010 

$598,886 $1,939,010 

Estate 
Donation 

$18,167 

$18,181 

$18,181 

18,181 

TDA 

$13,478 

$13,478 

$13,478 

13,478 

PEG 

$526,942 

$526,942 

$526,942 

526,942 

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS 

Equipment 
Replacement 

$2,509,734 

$2,509,734 

2,487,428 

$2,509,734 
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ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Receivables, net of allowance 

for uncollectibles: 
Accounts 
Interest 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted: 
Debt service 
Capital projects 
Special revenue programs and projects 

Assigned 

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2015 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

FUND 

General 

$192,219 
171,960 

$364,179 

$364,179 

364,179 

Total 
Non-major 

Governmental 
Funds 

$7,024,702 
171,960 

25,832 

$7,226,635 

$32,003 

32,003 

364,179 

4,343,025 

7,194,632 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Supplemental 
Vehicle Law Proposition 
Impound Enforcement Gas tax IB 

REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Licenses, pennits and fees 
Intergovernmental $107,062 $857,159 
Grants and donations 
Fines and forfeitures $17,810 
Interest and rentals 9,605 $197 
Other 

Total Revenues 17,810 107,062 866,764 197 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Community development 
Capital improvements 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 17,810 107,062 866,764 197 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) {17,8101 {100,000~ {1,209,213l 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 7,062 (342,449) 197 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 50,000 1,356,615 40,213 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

Stonn 
Drain 

Deposits 

$56,086 
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CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

Community 
Development Downtown Traffic Estate Equipment 
Block Grant Parking Impact Fee Donation TDA PEG Replacement 

$86,680 
$41,212 $249,589 

$343,022 $5,000 $120,000 

12,499 10,604 77 

343,022 559,361 260,193 5,077 120,000 86,680 

38,619 
243,205 $76,126 

243,205 76,126 

99,817 520,742 260,193 120,000 86,680 (76,126) 

440,262 
(86,641) ~100,000) ~320,2251 {120,0001 {905,2911 

(86,641) (320,2251 {120,0001 440,262 (905,2911 

13,176 420,742 (60,032) 5,077 526,942 (981,417) 

66,092 177,680 1,999,042 3,468,845 

$598,422 $1,939,010 $18,181 $13,478 $526,942 $2,487,428 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

FUND 
Total 

Non-major 
Governmental 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $86,680 
Licenses, pelTIlits and fees 290,801 
Intergovernmental 964,221 
Grants and donations 468,022 
Fines and forfeitures 17,810 
Interest and rentals 32,982 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Community development 38,619 
Capital improvements 319,331 
Debt service: 

Principal $100,000 100,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 68,808 68,808 

Total Expenditures 168,808 526,758 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES {168,808} 1,839,408 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 168,779 609,041 
Transfers (out) {2,859,180} 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 168,779 {2,250, 1392 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (29) (410,731) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 364,208 

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
VEfllCLE IMPOUND FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Fines and forfeitures 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$26,900 

26,900 17,810 

26,900 17,810 

(17,810) 

$26,900 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

(9,090) 

(17,810) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$100,000 $107,062 

100,000 107,062 

(100,000) 

(100,000) 

$100,000 7,062 

$57,062 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$7,062 

7,062 

7,062 

(100,000) 

(100,000) 

($92,938) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
GAS TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental 
Interest and rentals 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$591,000 $857,159 
4,900 9,605 

595,900 866,764 

595,900 866,764 

(1,209,213) 

$595,900 (342,449) 

1,356,615 

$1,014,166 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$266,159 
4,705 

270,864 

(1,209,213) 

($938,349) 
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REVENUES: 
Interest and rentals 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
PROPOSITION IB FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

$1,600 $197 

1,600 197 

1,600 197 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $1,600 197 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance $40,410 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

($1,403) 

(1,403) 

($1,403) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

REVENUES: 
Grants and donations 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital improvements 

Total Expenses 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

Final 

$92,000 

92,000 

$343,022 

343,022 

99,817 

(86,641) 

(86,641) 

13,176 

$79,268 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

$251,022 

251,022 

7,817 

(86,641) 

(86,641) 

($78,824) 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
DOWNTOWN PARKING FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Licenses, permits and fees 
Interest and rentals 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Community development 

Total Expenses 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$27,900 $41,212 
9,400 12,499 

37,300 559,361 

50,000 38,619 

(100,000) 

420,742 

177,680 

$598,422 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$13,312 
3,099 

505,650 

522,061 

11,381 

510,680 

(100,000) 

$433,442 
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REVENUES: 
Licenses, pennits and fees 
Interest and rentals 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Actual 

$4,200 

4,200 

4,200 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $4,200 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$249,589 
10,604 

260,193 

260,193 

(320,225) 

(320,225) 

(60,032) 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

$249,589 
6,404 

255,993 

255,993 

(320,225) 

($64,232) 
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REVENUES: 
Interest 
Grants and donations 

Total Revenues 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
ESTATE DONATION FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

$100 $77 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $100 5,077 

Beginning fund balance 13,104 

Ending fund balance $18,181 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

($23) 
5,000 

4,977 

4,977 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
TDAFUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Grants and donations $1,324,800 120,000 

Total expenditures 120,000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,324,800 120,000 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) (120,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $1,324,800 

Beginning fund balance 13,478 

Ending fund balance $13,478 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

($1,204,800) 

(1,204,800) 

(1,204,800) 

(120,000) 

($1,324,800) 



REVIEW DRAFT 106 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
PEG FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Final 
Budget Actual Amounts 

REVENUES: 
Charges for services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending fund balance 

$85,000 $86,680 

85,000 86,680 

(85,000) 86,680 

440,262 

($85,000) 526,942 

$526,942 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$1,680 

1,680 

1,680 

440,262 

$1,680 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the fmancing of goods and services provided by one City 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other government units on a cost­
reimbursement basis (including depreciation). 

DENTAL REIMBURSEMENT 

To account for costs of the City's self insurance dental program. Funds are provided primarily from charges to 
departments. 

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 

To account for the unemployment insurance premiums and claims made against the City. Funds are provided 
primarily from charges to departments. 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 

To account for the premium costs and self-insured claim losses made against the City for workers 
compensation. Funds are provided primarily from charges to departments. 

LIABILITY INSURANCE 

To account for the premium costs and self-insured claim losses made against the City for property-related and 
general liability. Funds are provided primarily from charges to departments. 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 

Dental 
Reimbursement 

$153,228 

153,228 

9,522 

Unemployment 
Insurance 

$349,390 

349,390 

4,884 
Claims and judgements - current portion 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Claims andjudgements - noncurrent portion 

Total Liabilities 9,522 4,884 

NET POSITION 

Unrestricted 143,706 344,506 

Total Net Position $143,706 $344,506 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Insurance 

$4,076,965 
3,447 

4,080,412 

21,802 
572,261 

3,369,739 

3,963,802 

116,610 
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Liability 
Insurance 

$815,038 
6,686 

7,805 
50,707 

153,293 

211,805 

$5,394,621 
10,133 

44,013 
622,968 

3,523,032 

4,190,013 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Dental Unemployment 
Reimbursement Insurance 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $123,225 $75,353 

Total Operating Revenues 123,225 75,353 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Outside services 
Claims reimbursement 128,498 7,030 
Insurance 
Administration 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Change in Net Position (5,273) 68,323 

BEGINNING NET POSITION (DEFICITS) 148,979 276,183 

ENDING NET POSITION (DEFICITS) $143,706 $344,506 

Workers' 
Compensation 

$1,005,198 

1,005,198 

1,432,732 
141,809 

1,623,759 

(618,561) 

(618,561) 

735,171 

$116,610 
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Liability 

$552,502 $1,756,278 

552,502 1,756,278 

159,158 159,158 
(24,845) 1,543,415 
327,848 469,657 

462,161 2,221,448 

90,341 (465, 1702 

90,341 (465,170) 

519,578 1,679,911 

$609,919 $1,214,741 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from other funds 
Cash payments to claimants 
Insurance premiums, settlements, and rebates 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Net Cash Flows 

Cash and investments at beginning of period 

Cash and investments at end of period 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash flows 
from operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash flows 

from operating activities: 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 
Claims and judgments payable 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Dental 
Reimbursement 

$123,225 
(124,230) 

(1,005) 

(1,005) 

154,233 

($5,273) 

4,268 

Unemployment 
Insurance 

$75,353 
(2,146) 

73,207 

73,207 

$68,323 

4,884 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Insurance 

$1,002,454 
(1,452,245) 

771,080 

321,289 

321,289 

($618,561) 

(2,744) 
(19,513) 



REVIEW DRAFT 113 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

Liability 

$545,816 
(17,259) 

(551,295) 

(22,738) 

(22,738) 

837,776 

$815,038 

$90,341 

(6,686) 
(42,104) 

($22,738) 

$1,746,848 
(1,595,880) 

219,785 

370,753 

5,023,868 

$5,394,621 

($465,170) 

(9,430) 
(52,465) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

AGENCY FUNDS 

NORTH COUNTY LmRARY AUTHORITY 

This fund accounts for the operating activities and the special assessment collection pertaining to the North 
County Library Authority. 

AVALON DRIVE CURB AND GUTTER 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of the debt service related to the 
construction and installation of curbs and gutters. The revenue is derived from the special assessment levied to 
property owners within that improvement district. 

RAYMUNDO CURB AND GUTTER 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of the debt service related to the 
construction and installation of curbs and gutters. The revenue is derived from the special assessment levied to 
property owners within that improvement district. 

BLUE OAK LANE SEWER 

This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of the debt service, construction and 
installation of sanitary sewer systems on Blue Oak Lane funded via November 2009 limited obligation 
assessment district bonds. The revenue is derived from the special assessment levied to property owners 
within that improvement district. 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Balance 

North County Library Authority 

Assets 

Cash and investments $2,368,319 $2,971,524 $3,398,470 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets $2,369,204 $3,927,063 $3,398,470 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $240,793 $545,182 $535,807 
Due to others 2,128,411 3,381,881 2,862,663 

Total liabilities 

Avalon Drive Curb Gutter 

Assets 

Cash and investments $37,712 $125 $19,429 

Total assets $37,712 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $19,403 $19,403 
Due to others $37,712 19,304 

Total liabilities $37,712 $19,403 $38,707 

Raymundo Curb and Gutter 

Assets 

Cash and investments $44,190 $26,596 $29,734 
Accounts receivable 130 914 130 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $29,721 $29,721 
Due to others $44,320 2,354 

Total liabilities $44,320 $29,721 $32,075 

Balance 

$1,941,373 

$2,897,797 

$250,168 
2,647,629 

$18,408 

$18,408 

$18,408 

$18,408 

$41,052 
914 

f."'~' 

$41,966 

$41,966 
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CITY OF LOS ALTOS 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Balance 
Additions Deductions 

Blue Oak Lane Sewer 

Assets 

Cash and investments $26,544 $80,860 $81,743 

Restricted cash and investments 39,788 6 

Accounts receivable 169 335 169 

Total assets $66,501 $81,201 $81,912 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $81,743 $30,752 

Due to others 

Total liabilities $66,501 $81,743 $82,454 

Assets 

Cash and investments $2,476,765 $3,079,105 $3,529,376 

Restricted cash and investments 39,788 6 

Accounts receivable 1,184 956,788 299 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $240,793 $676,049 $615,683 

Due to others 

Total liabilities $2,517,737 $4,057,930 $3,551,706 

Balance 
6/30/2015 

$25,661 
39,794 

335 

$65,790 

$50,991 

$65,790 

$2,026,494 
39,794 

957,673 

$301,159 

$3,023,961 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for understanding 
what the information in the fmancial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's 
overall fmancial health. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's fmancial performance and well being 
have changed over time: 

1. Net Position by Component 
2. Changes in Net Position 
3. Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
4. Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue source, the property tax: 

1. Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds 
2. Assessed Value of Taxable Property 
3. Property Tax Dollar by Break Down 
4. Property Tax Dollars by Recipient Group 
5. Direct and Overlapping Tax Rates 
6. Principal Property Taxpayers 
7. Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt 
and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future: 

1. Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
2. Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
3. Legal Debt Margin 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the 
City's financial activities take place: 

1. Demographic Statistics 
2. Principal Employers 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the City's financial 
report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs: 

1. Full-Time Equivalent City Employees by Function/Program 
2. Operating Indicators by FunctionlProgram 
3. Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionIProgram 
4. Trust and Agency Debt Administration 

Sources 
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the 
relevant year. 



REVIEW DRAFT 122 12/1/2015   2:12 PM

This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



R
EV

IEW
 D

R
A

FT
123

12/1/2015   2:12 PM

City of Los Altos 
Net Position by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis 0/ accolllllillg; amounts expressed ill th ousands) 

Fiscal Year 

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 
Governmental activities 

Net invesbnent in capital assets 537,877 538,186 $40,251 $40,684 542,596 546,011 548,511 550,102 $50,164 $49,079 
Restricted 2,403 2,709 3,366 3,477 3,411 3,057 3,926 7,406 17,629 17,815 
Unrestricted 23,343 27,386 37,038 36,184 35,476 33,448 34,634 29,883 27,624 10,746 

Total governmental activities lief position 563,623 568,281 $80,655 $80,345 $8 1,483 582,516 587,071 587,391 595,4 17 577,640 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets 52,527 52,388 52,219 53,316 53,552 55,197 55,952 56,773 58,718 58,662 
Unrestricted 5,511 6,977 7,922 8,102 8,766 7,625 7,539 7,843 8,087 8.472 

Total business-type activities lIet position 58,038 59,365 510,141 511,418 S12,318 512,822 5 13,49 1 514,6 16 516,805 SI7,134 

Primary government 
Net investment in capital assets 540,404 540,574 542,470 544,000 S46,148 551 ,208 554,463 556,875 558,882 557,741 
Restricted 2,403 2,709 3,366 3,477 3,411 3,057 3,926 7,406 17,629 17,815 
Unrestricted 28,854 34,363 44,960 44,286 44,242 41,073 42,173 37,726 35,711 19,218 

Total primary government net posiiion S7 1,661 577,646 590,796 591,763 593,801 595,338 5100,562 5102,007 5 11 2,222 594,774 

Source: 
City of Los Altos Finance Deparunent 
The City adjusted certain beginning balances during fiscal year 20 14-2015. Financial data shown for proceeding years were not adjusted for the presentation. 
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City of Los Altos 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

Public safety $9,913 $11,033 $12,415 $13,563 $13,812 $14,101 $14,797 $15,144 $14,884 $15,636 
Public works 4,224 4,799 4,886 5,318 5,170 5,451 5,157 5,557 6,453 7,058 
Recreation 2,405 2,460 2,650 2,889 2,460 2,503 2,193 2,108 2,656 2,976 

development 2,604 2,875 3,448 3,913 3,962 4,052 3,583 4,514 4,038 4,590 
Admin/Community services 2,502 2,655 3,317 3,765 3,794 3,837 4,034 5,675 3,804 4,002 
Interest on long-term activities 151 146 138 32 83 86 69 95 71 68 

Total governmental activities expenses 21,799 23,968 26,854 29,480 29,281 30,030 29,833 33,093 31,906 34,330 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 3,324 3,712 3,886 4,810 4,438 4,520 4,386 4,529 4,574 4,789 
Solid waste 1,264 1,575 1,609 1,574 1,826 717 341 355 366 347 
Storm drain 183 181 213 188 199 200 213 232 165 215 

Total Business-type activities expenses 4,771 5,468 5,708 6,572 6,463 5,437 4,940 5,116 5,105 5,351 

Total primary government expenses $26,570 $29,436 $32,562 $36,052 $35,744 $35,467 $34,773 $38,209 $37,011 $39,681 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
Public safety $377 $499 $527 $585 $466 $348 $394 $344 $417 $898 
Public works 156 228 204 180 152 191 32 34 60 33 
Recreation 1,545 1,665 1,654 1,472 1,498 1,763 1,808 1,865 1,952 2,167 

development 2,644 2,501 3,372 1,867 2,954 2,650 3,260 7,431 5,196 3,625 
services 580 1,166 967 969 1.097 1.061 875 947 942 954 

Operating grants and contributions: 
Public safety 136 112 118 108 102 100 112 109 116 109 
Public works 535 541 511 479 462 682 829 699 909 504 
Recreation 42 9 27 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Community development 126 141 285 48 56 168 21 59 36 343 
Admin/Community services 6 6 6 6 131 64 36 58 6 0 

Capital grants and contributions 
Public safety 0 121 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Public works 498 322 923 978 985 711 897 492 747 498 
Recreation 0 1 492 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Community development 0 0 0 24 7 0 3,400 80 3 30 
Admin/Community services 0 0 0 89 200 78 76 0 83 0 

Total governmental activities program revenues 6,645 7,312 9,090 6,819 8,110 7,816 11,740 12,118 10,467 9,161 
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City of Los Altos 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Sewer 
Solid waste 
Stonn drain 

Total business-type activities program revenues 
Total primary government program revenues 

Net (expense)/revenue: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 
Total primary government net (expense)/revenue 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position 
Governmental activities 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 

ity users taxes 
Other taxes 
Franchise fees 

Sale of Capital Assets-net 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Source: 
City of Los Altos Finance 

Note: 

4,264 4,833 4,467 5,804 5,413 4,813 4,503 5,121 
1,455 1,471 1,540 1,685 1,657 992 821 879 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5,719 6,304 6,007 7,489 7,070 5,805 5,324 6,000 

$12,364 $13,616 $15,097 $14,308 $15,180 $13,621 $17,064 $18,118 

($16,656) ($17,764) ($22,661) ($21,171) ($22,214) ($18,093) ($20,975) 
948 836 299 917 607 368 384 884 

($14,206) ($15,820) ($17,465) ($21,744) ($20,564) ($21,846) ($17,709) ($20,091) 

$9,767 $10,903 $11,875 $12,759 $13,051 $12,794 $13,302 $14,130 
2,662 2,750 2,872 2,697 2,255 2,588 2,746 2,926 
2,101 2,274 2,483 2,530 2,515 2,543 2,548 2,600 

235 2,682 2,703 2,147 2,453 2,910 2,868 3,301 
1,110 1,164 2,029 1,458 1,437 1,814 1,731 1,770 

0 0 6,499 0 0 0 (545) (8) 
1,048 1,414 1,353 760 341 275 115 174 
3,050 323 517 201 286 388 131 382 
{1872 {1972 {1932 {200} {2392 {651 {2472 {2321 

19,786 21,313 30,138 22,352 22,099 23,247 22,649 25,043 

0 296 284 160 53 71 37 10 

187 197 193 200 239 65 247 232 
187 197 477 360 292 136 284 242 

$19,973 $21,510 $30,615 $22,712 $22,391 $23,383 $22,933 $25,285 

$4,632 $4,657 $12,374 ($309) $928 $1,033 $4,556 $4,068 
1,135 1,033 776 1,277 899 504 668 1,126 

$5,767 $5,690 $13,150 $968 $1,827 $1,537 $5,224 $5,194 

* - Storm Drain activities were included in Sewer before the fiscal year 2004-05. 

6,347 6,328 
754 786 

12 2 
7,113 7,116 

$17,580 $16,277 

($21,439) ($25,169) 
2,008 1,765 

($19,431) ($23,404) 

$15,586 $17,480 
2,809 2,943 
2,600 2,523 
3,542 3,732 
1,905 1,808 
2,846 0 

99 200 
212 1,124 

{I521 {196} 
29,447 29,614 

28 40 
152 196 
180 236 

$29,627 $29,850 

$8,008 $4,445 
2,188 2,001 

$10,196 $6,446 
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City of Los Altos 
Fund Balances - Govemmtntal Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal VUI'"S 
(modified accmal basis oj accounting,- amoullts expressed in ,housallds) 
(Pre GASB 54 PreselllatiolJ - For Years Before 2011-12) 

(pre GASB 54 Presentation) 2005-U6 2006-07 
General fund 

Reserved 55,872 5131 
Unreserved/Unrestricted 206 6, 157 

Total gelleraljllnd 56,078 56,288 

All other governmental funds 
Restricted 520,591 $4,604 
Reserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 0 (21) 
Capita] projects funds (770) 18,876 
Debt service funds (8) (8) 

Total all Ol/. er govemmentalfumJs $19,813 523,451 

Total all govemmenlaljtmds 525,891 529,739 

2007-ll8 2008-09 

5228 539 
6,492 7,650 

56,720 $7,689 

55,484 $3,472 

1,798 4,120 
21 ,360 21 ,814 

(8) (8) 
528,634 529,398 

535,354 537,087 

FiKal Year 
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 · 2014-15 

5143 548 546 549 527, 195 530,010 
6,908 7,836 7,439 8,453 1,433 4,789 

57,051 57,884 57,485 58,502 $28,628 534,799 

$3,399 52,780 $3,926 $7,406 5364 $10,614 

6,422 6,768 6,911 7,415 9,644 
19,540 16,868 17,213 15,676 7,62 1 7,201 

529,361 526,4 16 $28,050 530,497 $17,629 S17,815 

536,412 534,300 535,S35 538,999 546,257 552,614 

• The General Fund is presented together with the City's Real Propeny Proceeds Fund and Community Facilities Renewal Fund for the firs! time in 2013114. In prior years, the amounts in these funds "'ere presented 
with All Other Governmental Funds. This change in presentation ~u1ts in a substantial shift in resources from All Other Governmental Funds Restricted and Reserved for Capital project funds in 2012113 
and prior years to the General Fund Reserved Fund Balance in 2013/14. 
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GASB 54 PresenIQlion:(2014- /5) 
General 
FllDd 

In Lieu 
Park Land 

2014-15 
Capital 

Projects 
Other Govt 

Funds Tofal 

Inventory & Prepaids ($21,861) ($21,861) 
Encumbrances (410,774) (410,774) 
Veteran Memorial (12,000) (l2.()OO) 
Non Spendable (444,635) 0 0 0 (444,635) 
Debt Service (S364, 179) (364,179) 
Special Re'I-'f!nue Programs and Proiecls (SS.907.033) (4,343,02S) (l0,2S0,OSS) 
Restricted 0 (5,907,033) 0 (4,707,204) (10,614,237) 
Emergency & Operating (6,705,000) (6,705,000) 
OPEB (2,000,000) (2,000,000) 
PERS Reserve (600,000) (600,000) 
Technology reserve ( I,SOO,OOO) ( I,SOO,OOO) 
Capital Projects (18,760,241) (54,713,620) (2,487,428) (25,961,289) 
Assigned (29,565,241) 0 (4,713,620) (2,487,428) (36,766,289) 
Unassigned (4,789, 162) (4,789,162) 
Total Fund Eq" ;O' (534,799,038) (55,907,033) (54,713,620) (57,194,632) (552,614,323) 

GO,OOO,OOO 

4{) ,000,000 

20,000,000 

Source: 
City of Los Altos Finance Department 

. Unusl£n~ 

. Assjgn~ 

. Committ~ 

• Restricted 

• Non Spendable 



R
EV

IEW
 D

R
A

FT
128

12/1/2015   2:12 PM

City of Los Altos 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 
2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

Revenues 
Taxes $13,781 $15,205 $16,566 $17,115 $17,545 $17,714 $18,250 $19,444 $21,950 
License, permits and park-in-lieu 2,568 2,522 3,493 2,532 3,025 3,187 3,204 3,312 4,531 3,925 

users tax and Intergovernmental 4,515 4,323 4,470 4,365 3,680 3,988 4,333 4,513 4,861 3,549 
Grants and donations 549 359 1,294 305 559 929 4,242 650 788 873 
Charges for services 3,272 3,701 3,673 3,422 3,494 4,020 3,780 4,480 4,572 4,698 
Fines and forfeitures 201 264 286 329 246 148 231 171 214 161 
Interest and rentals 1,338 1,692 1,857 945 504 333 169 135 159 291 
Other 395 777 1,284 359 1,394 521 973 4,616 2,989 1,306 

Total revenues 26,619 28,843 32,923 29,372 30,447 30,840 35,182 37,321 40,064 38,970 
Expenditures 

General government 
Public Safety 

Police 7,047 7,245 7,553 8,283 8,111 8,616 9,588 9,178 8,891 9,166 
Fire Services 3,020 3,839 4,664 4,900 5,119 5,259 5,375 5,513 5,714 5,961 

Public works 3,775 4,321 4,286 5,038 4,420 4,793 4,826 4,831 4,353 4,307 
Recreation 1,952 2,103 2,257 2,443 1,994 2,062 2,429 2,102 2,186 2,389 
Community development 2,606 2,922 3,384 3,826 3,770 3,973 3,726 4,553 3,885 4,221 
Administration/Community services 2,414 2,658 3,222 3,623 3,600 3,845 3,624 3,655 3,552 
Capital improvements 72 1,374 2,719 1,288 2,784 4,475 3,212 2,916 3,492 2,435 
Debt service 

Principal 193 193 657 101 85 85 90 95 95 100 
Interest and fiscal charges 146 143 138 103 81 80 77 75 72 69 

Total expenditures 21,225 24,798 28,880 29,605 29,964 33,188 32,947 32,918 32,240 32,418 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 5,394 4,045 4~ (233) 483 (2,348) 2,235 4,403 7,824 6,552 

Other fmancing sources (uses) 
Debt issuance 257 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Transfers in 6,639 6,153 5,388 2,396 2,781 3,509 1,887 2,443 2,119 3,632 
Transfers out (6,8272 {6,3501 (5,5812 (2,5962 {3,0202 p,5741 {2,1342 (2,9252 {2,6851 {3,828 l 

Total Other fmancing sources (uses) 69 (197) (193) (200) (239) (65) (247) (482) (566) (196) 
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City of Los Altos 
Cbanges in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting; amounts expressed ill thousands) 

Fiscal Year 
2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-\2 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

Special items 
CALPers Side Fund Pay Down 
Sale of capital assets-net 

Total special items 

Net change in fund balaoces 

Debt service as a percentage of 
non-capital expenditures 

Source: City of Los Altos Finance Department 

o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 

o 
1,765 
1,765 

o 
2, 167 
2,167 

55 ,463 53 ,848 55,6 15 51,734 

1.6% 1.4% 3.0% 0.7% 

(3,005) 0 (850) (950) 
2, 167 300 100 492 
(838) 300 (750) (458) 

($594) ($2,113) SI,238 $3,463 

0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

o 
o 
o 

57,258 

0.6% 

o 
o 
o 

56,356 

0.6% 




